Indian Hills General Improvement District
Board of Trustees

Chairman Vice Chairman Secretary/Treasurer Trustee Trustee
Kathryn Clark-Ross ~ Dale Dunham Russ Siegman Robert Garcia Bill Eisele

December 8, 2022
Regular Board Meeting
2:00 P.M.

District Board Room
3394 James Lee Park Road
Carson City, NV
89705

(775) 267-2805

MISSION STATEMENT
The Mission of the District is to provide, within its Charter, those public facilities and services which
maintain and improve the quality of life of its resident families and to maintain and operate those
facilities and services at the highest quality and in the most cost-effective manner possible, with the
intent to continue to do so for a growing population of residents.

It is the intent of the Board of Trustees to proteci the dignity of citizens who wish to comment before the Board. It
is also the Board of Trustees’ wish to provide the citizens of the district with an environment that upholds the
highest professional standards.

In order to ensure that every citizen desiring to speak before the Board has the opportunity to express
his/her opinion, it is requested that the audience refrain from making comments, hand clapping or making any
remarks or gestures that may interrupt, interfere, or prevent the speaker from commenting on any present or future
project.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of Agriculture policy, IHGID is prohibited from discriminating
on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability (Not all prohibited bases apply to all
programs.} To file a complaint of discrimination, write to USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400
Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410, or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382
(TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Communication for Hearing Impaired: Nevada Relay Service is available by calling 711. The TTY or
HCO (hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868, Voice only is 800-326-6888, VCO (voice carry over) is
800-326-4013.

Notice to Persons with Disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special assistance
or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the District Office in writing at 3394 James Lee Park
Road, Carson City, NV 89705, or by calling 267-2805 at least 24 hours in advance.

Following is the Agenda, which is also posted on IHGID’s website at: www.indianhillsnevada.com




AGENDA

2:00 P.M.

1. Call to Order - Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Public Interest Comment (No Action)

The public may comment on any subject that is pertinent to IHGID. The public may comment on any item that is on
this agenda at the time it is discussed. Therefore, the public is encouraged and permitted to make comments on any
non-agenda items during the public interest comment period. Comments may be limited by the discretion of the
Chair and may not exceed three (3) minutes. Please note that the Board is prohibited by law from deliberating or
taking action on issues raised by the public that are not listed on this agenda.

Approval of Agenda-Chairman

Items on this agenda may be taken out of order. Two or more agenda items may be combined
for consideration. Any item appearing on this agenda may be removed, or its discussion
delayed at any time.

Discussion and possible action to accept the annual audit for fiscal year ending June 30,
2022. Presentation by District audit firm Steele and Associates. (Jonathan Steele)
(General Manager, Chris Johnson)

e Board of Trustees Discussion
¢ Open Public Comment
e Close Public Comment

Discussion and possible action to approve a quote from Maxwell Products Inc. in the amount
of $10,150.00 for 15,000 pounds of crack seal material. (General Manager, Chris Johnson)

Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
e (Close Public Comment

Discussion and possible action to approve commencement of fundraising via a “buy a brick”
program for purchase and donation of engraved paver bricks to the hardscape segment of the
South Sunridge Dog Park project. (Vice Chairman, Dale Dunham)

Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
¢ (lose Public Comment

Discussion and possible action to approve Draft Minutes from the November 16, 2022,
Board Meeting.

o Board of Trustees Discussion
¢ Open Public Comment
® (Close Public Comment




9. Chairman and Trustees Reports, Correspondence
Under this item the Board Members will briefly identify relevant communications received
by them before the meeting, or meetings attended, or potential business of the district. No
action will be taken on any of these items, but a member may request such item or topic be
placed on a future agenda.

10.  Adjournment

This agenda is posted at www.indianhillsnevada.com, https://notice.nv.gov and at the following locations:
District Main Office, 3394 James Lee Park Road

.

As of 8:30 AM., December 2, 2022, by ;
LS Iy ' L]



AGENDA ITEM 5.

Discussion and possible action to accept the
annual audit for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.
Presentation by District audit firm Steele and
Associates. (Jonathan Steele)

(General Manager, Chris Johnson)



Indian Hills General Improventen ict
Financia! Stat
June 30

Q\




INDIAN HILLS GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page No
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 1-3
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 4-7
BASIC FINAN A STA EMENTS
: 8
9
General Fund, Balance Sheet and Recon
to 10

General Fund, Statement of Revenues, Expenditu
Balance - Budget and Actual and Reconciliation of §

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to the SIE ! ivithe 11-12
: emt of b 13
Enterprise Funds, Statement of Revenue, Ex i 14
: 156-16
17-34
nue, Expandttures
Budget and Actual 36
{ Pension Information 37-38
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
neral Fund Schedule of Expenditures 40 - 41
chedule of Services and Supplies 42
PN INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE
prt on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
d Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
ccordance with Government Auditing Standards 44 - 45

AUDITOR'S COMMENTS 47 - 49



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of the
Indian Hills Genera! Improvement District

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the government activities, business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the indian Hills General Improvement
District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, |
position of the governmental activities of the Indian Hills General Img

and the changes in financial position for the year then ended if
generally accepted in the United States of America.

all material respects, the financial
- irict as of June 30, 2022,
{h accounting principles

Basls for Opintons

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards ggnprgily = in e Unifed States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained irf Govegiriie: iting S rds, issued

by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our regpansibiliti [er those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe finantis ' ction of our report. We
are required to be independent of the Indian Hills Gena meet our cther ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethic; . We belleve that the

Management is réesponsible for the pregdrat
with accounting principles anerally d

fhe financial statements in accordance
tales of America; and for the design,
i [T | e preparation and fair presentation of
financial statemeni§ thgk-are-fge from &l miastatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

In preparing ifie{ i mahg LIS Maguired to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, corfsidefed i , thatralse anidl doubt about the indian Hills General Improvement
District's alplify Dnkern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including anisgur i ol that may raise substantiat doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor's Respohgibi fit 9f the Financial Statements

i afile g5surance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatemenRf, Whether#gue to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assu ance jg'a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit'@6nducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantiai likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we!

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Indian Hills General Improvement District's internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaludts the overa!l presentation of the
financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions g &y
raise substantial doubt about the Indian Hills General Ifiprg
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

#ted in the aggregate, that
s ability to continue as a

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, adCagtaim. i matters
that we identified during the audit.
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the Unjieg lea requiretiat the management's
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison infoft Liffigrmation on pages 4 through 7,
36 and 37 through 38, respectively, be pregamte z 3T jasicfinancial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of manage dl h § O tie basm financial statements, is
required by the Govemmental Account I hgjders it to be an essential part of
sif pptopriate operational, economic, or
equired management discussion and

¢ do not express an opi HoM & o
0ot provide us with sufficlgiitevidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

The budgetary & n subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financia ain @editional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly ] g @cpbunting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basjj ig gments themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance

with auditing standards geRs
comparison information is fai
a whole.

epted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the budgetary
d, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Indian Hills General Improvement District's basic financial statements. The supplementary
information included on pages 40 through 42 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is

A



fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 28,
2022, on our consideration of the Indian Hills General Improvement District's internal control over financial
reporting and our test of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Indian Hilis General
Improvement District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Carson City, Nevada
November 28, 2022

Q&




Indian Hills General Improvement District
Management's Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited)
June 30, 2022

The management's discussion and analysis provides an overview of the District's financial activities for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Please read it along with the District's financial statements, which follow this
section.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the District. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate
in all material aspects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and
results of the operations of the District; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the District's financial activity have been included.

Financial Highlights

Capital assets in the Enterprises Fund went up by $368,553.
Capital assets in the General Fund increased by $156,53

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the District i = 8S
standard establishes a single reporting model for lease ac e folmdatiog p rincipal
that leases are financings of the right to use an asset. A% It, T 1 of thi tandard
resulted in recognition of a right-of-use asset and an offsetting{gash, liabili well'as a lease
receivable with an offsetting deferred inflow of regourtes

Financlal Overview

The District accounts for its overall financia! matier: imay Funds. The General Fund
{Governmental type activities) accounts for alléay reveptes afid g | all amPunts and types of expenses
spent from those tax revenues. The Entgfpriss Sine efagtivities) accounts for all non-tax

N di &@ll amounts and types of expenses

5. All costs associated with these types of activities, from staff
pplies are budgeted annually. Annually, by the end of May, the
Board sets a redhgsidle ] '. g within the District, after receiving rate authorization limits from
the State Departm i iony) by mid March.
The District has, on at Iegsts GEcasions in the last 27 years, adopted a tax rate for the year lower than
the rate authorized by Takgl Ag this key decision is made, the Board considers the entire scope of
general fund supported activ D be provided for during the upcoming year, the amount of general fund
reserves, which should be kept'in place for the future year, and then determines the rate that will produce
those revenues.

Water production, storage, treatment and distribution, as well as sewage collection, treatment, effluent
storage and disposal activities, for the entire utility district, are the activities which are funded by and
accounted for in the Enterprise Fund. All costs associated with these types of activities, from staff related
costs to materials and operational supplies, are budgeted annually and accounted for separately.

The board reviews the utility rates annually to determine the need for rate increases. Federal and State
regulations or specifically required or internally determined infrastructure improvements, and utility systems
expansion to accommodate growth, all influence the utility rate making function.



Indian Hilis General Improvement District
Management'’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited)
June 30, 2022

Budgeting for a specific upcoming year is a function of projecting these rates, currently in effect, across the
number of customers and volumes of usage to predict revenues, project reserves, and plan for systems
improvements

Condensed Financial Statements

The condensed Statement of Nef Position is as follows:

Governmental Activilies Business-Type Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2022 2021
ASSETS
Current & other assets $ 2761000 § 2255667 $ 7,203,70 9,964,717 § 8,717,531
Capital assets 4,711,265 4,852,785 14,4001 19,799,834
Non cument assels . S 227,41 232,556
Deferred outflows 187,587 121,026 326,921
Total assets 7,659,861 7,229,478 22,200,654 76,842
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 45753 40,618 642,827
Non current liabilities 254,904 425,033 4,871,160
Deferred outflows 602,070 169,706 683,461
Total liabilities 902,727 635,357 6,197,448
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assels,
net of related debt 4,698,328 15,348,196 15,593,238
Restricted cash 1,115,392 4,718,845 4,036,201
Unrestricted 2,264,524 3,969,695 3,249,955
Total net positign 457 L 16,978,945 $ 16,285273 § 24,036,736 $ 22,879,394

The condg

Business-Type Activities Total
2022 2021 2022 2021
REVENUE
Charges for services - $§ 2913500 $ 2622964 § 2913500 $ 2,622,964
General revenue 1,321,736 32,307 21,533 1,405,557 1,343,269
Transfers 67,927 {63,137) {67,927) - -
Total revenue 1,389,663 2,882,670 2,576,570 4,319,057 3,966,233
EXPENDITURES
General government 270,865 274 644 - - 270,865 274,644
Public works 417,072 384,667 - - 417,072 384,667
Culture & recreation 284,780 305,893 - - 284,780 305,893
Water & sewer - - 2,075,040 2,105,287 2,075,040 2,105,287
Interest expenses - - 113,958 129,316 113,958 129,316
Total expenses 972,717 965,204 2,188,998 2,234,603 3,161,715 3,199,807
Change in Net Position $ 463670 $ 424459 693,672 § 341,867 § 1,157,342 § 766,426




Indian Hills General Improvement District
Management'’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited)
June 30, 2022

Overall Financlal Position and Results of Operations

The General Fund is sufficient to support the activities and programs operated within that fund. A greater
emphasis has been placed on the maintenance of the District roads. This will require, at least the
maintenance of the existing ad valorem tax rate.

The utility operations are under pressure to make some significant and expensive improvement expenditures
over the next few years. This internal pressure is compounded by federal requirements as to the lower
arsenic levels, which have been addressed by the construction of the pipeline from Douglas County. The
District has installed emergency power generators at the District's main pyi uctlon well, the water treatment
plant and the wastewater plant. State required treatments have alsg pulexh PEressure on the Disfrict.

Operational Changes & Potential Future Impacts

State of Nevada and USDA. The District received grant commitfente in
District received loan commitments in the amount of $2,040,552. Construb "W
in the 2013/2014 fiscal year. The repayment period is 40 yeaesibu Bg fepaid sooner wnhout penalty

The District is approaching construction build out ang g (onconty gSpaid for by developers
and individuals to make significant improvements in {isutility infpdstylctige: Fuerefore, the monthly water and
sewer rates will need to be evaluated on a yae asfs. Thia | pprovied a five year rate plan with
annual increases reserved for infrastructurefepajss dul & 2 _ *-‘-' year. The lastincrease in this

five year plan was effective September 2018.

3 pay for the sewer plant improvements which will be needed to
ymount of $1,115,000 payable over 40 years. Construction was

Budgeting commences in lalsJap#ary inside District Administration. By mid-February each governmental
entity is provided preliminary profections from Taxation as to the projected tax revenues (sales taxes and ad
valorem taxes), which are expected to be available to the entities. From these preliminary figures, a
preliminary budget presentation is developed; the final figures come from Taxation in mid-March. The District
adopts its next year budget by the end of May.



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion & Analysis {(Unaudited)
June 30, 2022

Capital Assets & Debt-Current & Future

The District is organized under NRS 318 as a multi-faceted general improvement district. Under this
organization, the Disfrict is allowed an upper limit indebtedness of 50% of the assessed value of properties
inside the District. The assessed valuation of the District at June 30, 2022, isin excess of $148,643,351. The
District's debt is currently at $3,562,159. This debt is approximately 2%. This is a healthy debt position and
debt service is manageable in operating budgets.

The utility rate structure of the District is conscious of the depreciation charged against the infrastructure as
an appropriate accounting function. It has not, however, charged the Sers sufF iciently to fully cover the
depreciation amounts. The District approved a rate increase effe &l b€k, 2014 with the increase
being reserved for infrastructure expenses. In addition, the Dis 5 4% ojprojected net revenue to
reserve for infrastructure expenses.

Management Decisions & Future Impacts

Short term, the most significant potential impacts on the District fi tilltly opErations.
Given increasingly higher standards being placed on both the dellvery of gl the collection
and treatment of wastewater, as well as the aglng of the Digteie iliti 'eve greater emphams will

monthly rates.

Long ferm, the maintenance and needed upgrade of ' istri | . anthihe increased standards for the
maintenance of the extensive storm drain sys H imact the ¢ : Also, the construction of the
pipeline in conjunction with Douglas Coun | gl &% the District will be required to
repay the loans taken out to finance the gral Fund should be in rather good
shape for the foreseeable future.

CoViD-19

Due to the COVID-34 gmi i ed charging late fees during the 2020/2021 fiscal
year. The Djstricy: gh of the pandemic. The District re-instated late fees
and wate | year

o the information provided in this report or requests for additional

interest. Questions con Rrnindan
difessed to the District at 3394 #A James Lee Park Road, Carson City, NV

financial information should B
89705, or call 775-267-2805.

[0



Indian Hills General improvement District
Statement of Net Paosition
June 30, 2022

Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & cash equivalents $ 2,649,365 $ 6,723,450 $ 9372815
Taxes receivable - 62,306
Accounts receivable, less allowance for
doubtful accounts of $0 and $8,423 337,363 344,525
Other assets 142,895 185,071
Total Current Assets 203,708 9,964,717
Lease receivable 227,412
Lease assets, net of accumulated amortization 12,937
Property, Plant & Equipment, net 19,098,480
Total Assets 29,303,546
Deferred Cutflows of Resources
Pension requirement 369,382 556,969
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows
of Resources 29,860,515
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 61,512 71,103
Accrued payroll & benefits 61,023 91,371
Prepaid user fees 26,083 26,083
B 23,048 23,048
7.410 7.410
- 5,814
- 341,020 341,020
urrent Liabilities 45,753 520,096 565,849
Liabilities
2,948 4,700 7.648
- 104,026 104,026
- 3,305,238 3,305,238
7.667 - 7,667
244,289 481,036 725,325
Total Non-Current & 254,904 3,895,000 4,149,904
Total Liabilities 300,657 4,415,096 4,715,753
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources - lease - 213,095 213,005
Pension requirement 301,413 593,618 894,931
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
of Resources 602,070 5,221,709 5,823,779
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,698,328 10,649,868 15,348,196
Restricted cash 1,115,392 3,603,454 4,718,846
Unrestricted 1,244,071 2,725,623 3,969,694

Total Net Position

[l

7,057,791 $ 16,978,945 $ 24,036,736

See Accompanying Accountant's Audit Report & Notes to Financial Statements

“ /1



6
SJUBLUBIE]S JEIDUBUIH O] SOJON ¥ podey upny S uejunosdy builueduwoday eeg

9£/'9€0've Gre'el6'al ¢ L6/°2460'L g

¥6€'6/8'22 €12°'682°91 LZL'P6S'9

810'2 ZL5'2 (¥6t)

9/£'248'22 192°L22Z'9L G19'v65°'9

Zre'iSL'L 2.9'c69 0.9'c9t

IGS'S0T'L (0£8'0€) 18E'9EF' L

- (£€1'€9) LEL'EY

oeP's 112'9 6512

S1L'0F 20521 05922

0.¥'0L £75'8 L¥6'L

6 9Pe’L B 61 9re’ L

(51Z2'8v2) Z0S'vzZ. (212'216) G12'19L'E

20S'v2. 20S'¥2L - 866'881 2

(866°'E€LL) (856'€L1) 8S6'CLl

oot'ecg 09t'8e8 0v0'520°'2

(L12°216) - 111216

(082'v82) = 084'v82

(zz0'2L) = (zz0'219) rALWAR

(g98‘042) : $ ‘042) $98'022
el SSNALOY i EERTTNERS sasuadx3

adA | -ssauisng jeyusw 10y sebieyn

S)19SSY 19N Ul sebuey’)
pue anusAaay (ssuadxg) 19N

Z20Z ‘0¢ aunf papu3 IeaA ey io4
SaNIANOY JO Juswalelg
1oUIsIq Jusweaoldw| [eieues) s|IH UeIpu)

/&

ZZ0Z '0€ aunr ‘uomisod 18N

"pejeIsal se ‘L Z0g ‘0 aunp ‘uonsod JaN
(01 ®10N) ueunsnipy pouad Joud

1202 '0€ 8unp ‘uonisod 18N
uoIsSod 3aN ul abueyn

ANUSADY |BIBUSCS) |B)0 L
SJaysuUel) punye|
uolsodsip }@SSe Uo Ujee)
anuaAdl SNO3Ue||2oSIy
anuaAal Juels)
sBunues jsaIsy|
anuaaal Xe |

SANNIATY TVH3INTID

ejol
sanialoe adAj-ssauisng B0
asuadxa jsala|
Jamas 9 Jalep
sanARoy adA] -ssauisng
sapialoe [eluawwanob |ejo |
uoieassal g ainynd
syom dliqnd
JuawulaAob |eiauag
SSHAIOY [BIUSUILLISAOD)
SWYHOOUJ/SNOILONNS



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Balance Sheet and Reconciliation of the
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 2,649,365
Taxes receivable 62,306
Accounts receivable 7,162
Other assets 42,176
Total Assets $ 2,761,009
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 9,591

Accrued payroll & benefits
Compensated absences

Total Liabilities

17,458
12,890

39,939

FUND BALANCE
Assigned 1,115,393
Non-spendabie 42,176
Unassigned 1,563,501
Total Fund Balance 2,721,070
Total Liabilities and Fund Ba $ 2,761,008
RECONCILIATI THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Fund Balag Eeneral Fund $ 2,721,070
Amounts
statement o
Capital as
not financial
reported in the f 9,451,228
Less accumulated d | (4,752,900)
Less noncurrent comps d absences (2,948)
Right of use assets - leask 12,937
Less lease liability (13,481)
Deferred outflows of resources - pension requirement 187,587
Less net pension liability (244,289)
Less deferred inflows of resources - pension requirement {301,413)
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 7,057,791

Ses Accompanying Accountant’s Audit Report & Notes to Financial Statements
10

/3



Indian Hills General Improvement District
General Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance — Budget and Actual
And Reconciliation of Statement of Revenue,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

BUDGETED AMOUNTS Variance
Favorable
Qriginal Final Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenue
Ad Valorem taxes $ 086,682 $ $ 22,122
Consolidated tax 336,473 337,690 1,217
Grants - - -
Miscellaneous
Interest on investments 2,000 (53)
Miscellaneous 21,700 3,109
Total Revenues 1,346,855 1,373,250 26,395
EXPENDITURES
General Government
Salaries 45,868 1,874
Benefits 36,841 (17,541)
Services & supplies 206,473 30,177
Capital outlay - 5,000
Total General Government 289,182 19,510
Public Works
Salaries 93,758 90,465 3,293
Benefits 36,900 50,009 (13,109)
102,400 73,858 28,542
402,000 116,326 285,674
635,058 £635,058 330,658 304,400
Culture & Reb
Salaries 120,258 120,258 85,421 34,837
Benefits 50,200 50,200 46,915 3,285
Services & supp 155,900 155,900 137,663 18,237
Capital outiay 85,000 85,000 40,527 44,473
Total Culture & Recrag 411,358 411,358 310,526 100,832
Total Expenditures 1,355,108 1,355,108 930,366 424,742
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues over Expenditures  $ (8,263) {8,253) 442 884 $ 451,137
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2021 2,215,049
Interfund Transfers 63,137
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2022 $ 2,721,070

See Accompanying Accountant's Audit Report & Notes to Financial Statements / (7/
11



Indian Hills General Improvement District
General Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance — Budget and Actual
And Reconciliation of Statement of Revenue,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

RECONCILIATION OF THIS STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Net Change in Fund Balance - General Fund $ 442,884
Amount reported for governmental aclivities in the statemen
of activities are different because:
Interfund transfers 63,137
Less current ROU asset amortization (5,683)
Less current year depreciation {292,690)
Less lease liability interest expense (529)
Add back equipment lease expense 6,162
Add back capital outlay 156,853
Add back difference between pension expen con 94,111
Add back change in noncurrent compensat sences (575)
Change in Net Position of Governmental iti $ 463,670
See Accompanying Accountant's Audit Report & Notes to Financial Statemenis / f;

12



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Enterprise Funds
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

Business-Type Activities

Water Sewer
Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & cash equivalents $ 2,898,200 $3,825250 $ 6,723,450
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of $4,885 and $3,538 337,363
Other assets 142,895
Total Current Assets 7,203,708

Lease receivable
Property, Plant & Equipment, net

Total Assets

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
- Pension requirement

227,412

369,382

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows

of Resources 10,486,792 22,200,654
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 11,061 61,512
Accrued payroll & benefits 29,340 61,023
Prepaid user fees $5,128 10,955 26,083
‘ 19,071 3,977 23,048
7.410 - 7,410
230,884 110,136 341,020
354,627 165,469 520,096
1,909 2,791 4,700
36,409 67,617 104,026
1,818,538 1,486,700 3,305,238
Net pension liabi 233,047 247 989 481,036
Total Liabilities 2,444 530 1,970,566 4,415,096
Deferred Inflows of Resourchs

Deferred inflows of resources - lease 213,085 - 213,095
Pension requirement 287,541 305,977 593,518

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
of Resources 2,945,166 2,276,543 5,221,709

NET POSITION

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 5,991,897 4,657,971 10,649,868
Restricted cash 2,006,943 1,596,511 3,603,454
Unrestricted 769,858 1,955,767 2,725,623
Total Net Position $ 8,768,696 $8,210,249 $ 16,978,945

See Accompanying Accountant's Audit Report & Notes to Financial Statements
13



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Enterprise Funds
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Business-Type Aclivities

Water Sewer
Fund Fund Total
OPERATING REVENUE
Water & sewer user fees $ 1,492346 $ 1,068,888 $ 2,561,234
Gain on disposal of assets 6,179 98 6,277
Connection fees 176,133 352,266
Grant income -
Miscellaneous income 17,507
Total Operating Revenue 2,937,284
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries & wages 430,957
Employees benefits 93,038
Services & supplies 635,595
Depreciation 369,121 815,450
Total Operating Expenses 18,929 2,075,040
Operating Income (Loss) 862,244
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest income 12 8,523
Interest expense (48,205) {113,958)
(48,193) {105,435)
Income (Loss) Before Capital
377,997 756,809
(84,741) 21,604 {63,137)
294,071 399,601 693,672
8,467,113 7,810,648 16,277,761
7,512 - 7,512
8,474,625 7,810,648 16,285,273
$ 8,768,696 $ 8,210,249 $16,978,845

See Accompanying Accountant's Audif Report & Notes to Financial Statements
14

I'7



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Enterprise Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Business-Type Activities
Water Sewer
Fund Fund Total

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 1,636,636 $ 1,232,592 $ 2,869,228

Miscellaneous cash receipts 98 23,240
Payment of employee salaries & benefits (247,918) (585,654)
Payment of services & supplies {194,395) (617,897)
Net cash provided by operating activities 790,377 1,688,917
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interfund transfers {63,137)
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital
financing activities (63,137)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capit (132,677) (368,554)
Bond amortization premium 517) {2,817) (4,334)
Principal paid on long-term debt L167) (106,191) (433,358)
Interest paid on |cRg=t {71,041) (48,778) (119,819)
{635,602) (290,463) (926,065)
CASH F
1,213 12 1,225
1,213 12 1,225
NET INCREASE (DE )
CASH EQUIVALEN 179,410 521,530 700,940
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENA'S, June 30, 2021 2,718,790 3,303,720 6,022,510
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, June 30, 2022 $ 2,898,200 $ 3,825250 $ 6,723,450

See Accompanying Accountant’s Audit Report & Notes to Financial Statements / g
15



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Enterprise Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Business-Type Activities
Water Sewer
Fund Fund Total

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $
Non-cash adjustment
Depreciation
Increase (decrease) in cash from changes in:
Accounts receivable

426,190 $ 862,244

369,121 915,450

(8,926) (37,136)

Other assets {3,166) (3,274)
Accounts payable 14,944
Accrued payroll and benefits (60,140)

Prepaid user fees (763) (1,652)
Compensated absences 749 (1,519)

Met cash provided by operating activities 790,377 $ 1,688,917

See Accompanying Accountant’s Audit Report & Notes to Financial Statements / (?
16



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Indian Hills General Improvement District (the District) is governed by an elected board of
trustees and is responsible for providing water and sewer services and maintaining the streets and
parks within its boundaries.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The accounting policies of
the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles. The following is a summary of such
significant policies:

Reporting Entity

The financial statements of the District consist only of The District has no
oversight responsibility for any other governmental entity si i onsigered to be
controlled by or dependent on the District. Control or d i basis of

budget adoption, taxing authority, funding, and appointmeri{ of

The statement of net position and statement 0§z
statements and report information on all the
the effect of interfund activity has beepre

5 ment-wide financial
af the District. For the most part,
ments. Governmental activities,

Brgovesnim noee, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely igni xte g#s and charges for support.

which e direct expenses of a given program

[sesdre those that are clearly identifiable with
enues |nclude charges to customers or applicants who
ervices, or privileges provided by a given program or
restricted to meeting the operational or capital
axes and other items not properly included among
ad as general revenues.

fpvided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
jajor individual enterprise funds, if any, are reported as separate

Wile inaficiglstatements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accru asisrof accounting, as are proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. Under this
method, revenues are ragbdgnized at the time they are eamed and expenses are recognized when the
related liabilities are incurred. This basis also provides for matching of costs to the benefiting fiscal
periods by capitalizing costs to be depreciated or amortized. Grants are recognized as revenues as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

17 &O



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. This method provides for
recognizing expenditures at the time liabilities are incurred, while revenues are recorded when
measurable and available to finance expenditures of the fiscal period. An exception to this general
rule is that principal and interest on general long-term debt are facognized as expenditures when
due. Available is defined as being due and collected withir.the k
fiscal year end. Revenues due but received after the 60 ddy periodareyeeetded as receivables and
deferred revenue since the revenue is not available.

The accounts of the District are organized on the basfs urids ch is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund gre & y sepgrate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities Jlfd equi ; pEngitures, or
expenses as appropriate. Governmental resources are alli z : ad for
funds based upon the purposes for which they are to.he

General fund: The general fund is the gefiggs ihg funt istpt. Itis used to account
for all financial resources except those fédui e achpunied for in other funds.

financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
-hide and proprietary fund financial statements to the

8lso have the option of following subsequent private-sector
Clidlities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The
equent private-sector guidance.

diipterfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
igprs to this general rule are charges between the water and sewer
T Ahd functions of the District. Elimination of these charges would distort
the direct costs and'Rrografh revenue reported for the various programs and functions concerned.
Internal balances reflé¢ted on the statement of net assets are self balancing accounts used to
balance the major funds and indicate amounts paid by the Enterprise fund on behalf of the General
fund.

program and oth prod

Amounts reported as program revenue include charges to customers and operating grants and
contributions. Resources dedicated by the District are reported as general revenue as are all tax
revenue.

18 &/



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Amounts reported as program revenue include charges to customers and operating grants and
contributions. Resources dedicated by the District are reported as general revenue as are all tax
revenue.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses fr
revenue and expenses generally result from providing servi
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
of the Districtis the water and sewer user fees. Operati
benefits paid, administration, services and supplies.

non-operating items. Operating

dueing and delivering goods
cipal operating revenue
the cost of the salaries,

Capital Assets

Capital assets include land, buildings, machinery and equipfent applicable
governmental or business-type activities column in the.gi ncial statements. Assets

purchased or acquired with an original cost o ed at historical costs.
Donated assets are recorded at their estimate onated. The cost of
maintenance and repairs is charged to expéns assets are retired or
otherwise disposed of, the cost and rela flaty geiation are removed from the

accounts, and any resulting gain or |
capital assets is provided onthe s

g period. Depreciation on all
d useful life as follows:

¢ . der which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of monte Bcorded in order to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed as an extendigh of formal budgeting integration in the General fund. Encumbrances lapse
at the year end and are not carried over the succeeding year.

’ ol



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF S6IGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reportad as liabilities in the governmental activities. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as
insurance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the proportionate-to-
stated-interest-requirements method.

gaface amount of the debt
g5 are reported as other
nancing uses. Issuance

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types e
issued as other financing sources. Premiums received 8
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances arg
costs are reported as current expenditures of the fund

Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied on July 1 each year, and are dde | ; ents-in August,
October, January, and March. Taxes are considered.de i id within ten ays of the due
dates.

The District does not directiy collect any taxy of ge o8 3¢ county or state and
remitted to the District. Property tax reven : o f becomes available. Available
incudes current and prior year's prope es o o Br the county within sixty days

after year-end.

Statement of Cash Flows

inpensated absences that meet all of the following criteria:

ating to employee’s rights to receive compensation for future
ervices already rendered;

B. The obligativ aiés tgrrights that vest or accumulate;
misation is probable; and
D. The amount can be reasonably estimated.
Vacation and sick leave may be accumulated by employees up to certain maximums and is payable

upen retirement or termination. At the statement date, District personnel had accumulated vacation
and sick pay of $54,285.



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

[pEsources. This separate
umption of net position
gutflow of resources

In addition to assets, a separate section is reported for deféme}
financial statement element, deferred outflows of resourges,
that applies to a future period and will not be i

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 2% wel
measurement period for pensions qualify for reporting in il

b resources (revenue)
Deween projected and
the income related to the lease

position that applies to a future period and will gt}
until that time. Differences between expects
actual investment eamings on pension pla
receivable, qualify for reporting in this gate

In the fund fi nanmal statemen fund ba avernmental fund are reported in classifications
a4 Thier | rim #mMs can be spent. These include “non-

ures related to replacement of fully depreciated capital assets.

resources to finance qualifying activities then unrestricted
amounts are available for the same use,

available for the T e
Net Position

In the fund and the government-wide financial statements, net position is presented in one of three
classifications. Assets invested in capital assets are net of related debt, restricted and the residual
unrestricted net assets. In the governmental environment, resources are often assigned or
committed to specific purposes, indicating that those amounts are not considered available for
general operations. In contrast to restricted amounts, these types of constraints are internal and can
be removed or modified. Therefore, assignments and commitments are not presented in the
statements of net position.

%

21



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Public Employees' Retirement System of Nevada {PERS) and additions to/deductions
from PERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refundg.of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the bepefitertas. Ipugstments are reported at
fair value.

New Accounting Pronouncement

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the District adopted tN& pre ASBE'S ent No. 87,
Leases (GASBS 87). The objective of this statement ix'to hette: jormatitn needs of

requiring recognltlon of certain lease assets and |jaBbilities fc af pre ously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows gof rgs 8S Oh.[ Bf rebources based on the
payment provisions of the contract, Under tfiis { alessee i igd to recognize a lease
liability and an intangible right-to-use asset B fis requiratito recognize a lease receivable
and a deferred inflow of resources, there NG phce an

The District adhe doget Act incorporated within the statutes of the State of
Nevada, which s to establish the budgetary data reflected In these
financial stai,

requested AGY: Idsarh tax

3. Formal budgetary™mtegration in the financial records is employed to enhance management
control during the year for all funds.

4. Budgets for funds are adopted on a basis consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). Appropriations lapse at year end.

5. Budgeted amounts within funds, and between funds, may be transferred if amounts do not
exceed the amounts originally budgeted. Such transfers are to be approved by the Budget
Officer and/or the Board of Trustees, depending on the established criteria. Budget
augmentations in excess of original budgetary amounts may be made only with prior approval of
the District's Board of Trustees, following a scheduled and noticed public hearing.

%

22



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

In accordance with state statutes, actual expenditures may not exceed budgetary appropriations of the
various functions of the General fund, or total appropriations of the Enterprise fund, except for bond
repayments, short-term financing repayment and any other iong-term contract expressly authorized by law or
payments for the construction of public works from funds provided by the proceeds of a sale of bonds or
short-term financing.

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The District invests cash in either the state governmental deposit goal
deposits, or with a commercial bank, which also collateralizes &

ecurities collateralizing
deposits.

The State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool is reco oximates fair value
and is available to be withdrawn by the District on demand. The Pob Statg Treasurer,
with oversight by the State of Nevada Board of Finance. Statefsiatut i surer to
collateralize the deposits made to It with other securities. The State'tf Néya n unrated

external investment pool that does not provide information o reali réslized gain or loss activity.

pjn banks or savings and loan
Val,on demand.

Sewer

Fund Total
$ 164,160 $ 388,844
106,370 187,337 293,707
16,588 - 16,588
378,662 5,707 384,369
1,116,468 1,188,439 2,304,907
16,348 - 16,348
40,284 50,868 91,152
107,539 - 107,539

Total Restricted Ca $ 2,006,943 $ 1,596,511 $ 3,603,454

Al



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity during 2022 was as follows:

Balance Additions or Deletions or Balance
June 30, 2021 Transfers in Transfers out  June 30, 2022
Government Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Construction in process 3 - $ 65,386
Land 236,479 236,479
Open space improvements 11,974 11,974
Trailheads & trails 110,833 110,833
Total non-depreciable assets 359,286 424,672
Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings 722,343 722,343
Office furniture & equipment 26,578
Software 16,900
Vehicles & equipment 194,541
Other equipment 315,038
Park equipment & improvements 1,114,768
Street improvements 6,636,387
Total depreciable assets 9,026,556
Total capital assets 9,451,228
Less accumulated depreciation (4,752,900)
Governmental actiuities
- $ (135837) % - $ 4,698,328
Additions or Deletions or Balance

Transfers in Transfers out  June 30, 2022

- $ 174,707 $ - $ 174,707
Water & sewer sysh 32,109,619 179,795 32,289,414
Buildings 337,251 337,251
Office furniture & equiprg 28,846 28,846
Software 47,570 47,570
Vehicles & equipment 754,748 14,051 (5,000) 763,799
Other system improvements 849,311 849,311
Total depreciable assets 34,127,345 193,846 {5,000) 34,316,191
Total capital assets 34,127,345 368,553 {5,000) 34,490,898
Less accumulated depreciation {19,180,296) (915,450) 5,000 {20,090,746)
Business-type activities -
capital assets, net $ 14947049 § (546,897) § - $ 14,400,152

24

o7



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense is charged to functions as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
General government $ 6,341 Water $ 546,329
Public works 236,851 Sewer 369,121
Culture & recreation 49,398 $ 915,450
$ 292,690
NOTE 5 — LEASE TRANSACTIONS
The District entered into a five year lease agreement, commencin e use of a copy
system for $342 per month. The lease also provides for sales tax cording
to usage in addition to the monthly fee. The District also enter use of a
postage meter commencing January 7, 2020, for a quarterly feg i SBS 87, the
District has recorded lease liabilities and related right-to-ys terms of the lease, The
impact of the adoption of this standard on beginning nef Bts
Expense recorded under these leases for the year g - consisted of interest expense of
$529 and amortization expense of $5,683. The leak 5 i sllowing as of June 30, 2022
Deletions or Balance

in Transfers out  June 30, 2022

Government Activities _
Lease assets, offige : : - $ 5 $ 28,417

(5,683) (15,480)
$ (5683 § - $ 12937

Minimum futu en-cancelable leases are required as follows:

Principal Interest Total

$ 5,814 $ 349 $ 6,163

4,965 166 5,131

2025 2,702 32 2734
2026 - - -
2027 - - -
2028 and Later - - -
$ 13,481 $ 547 $ 14,028

%Y

25



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022
NOTE 5 — LEASE TRANSACTICONS (CONTINUED)

Lease liability activity is as follows:

Balance Additions Balance Due within
June 30, 2021 {Reductions)  June 30, 2022 One year

GOVERNMENT ACTIVITIES
Lease liability $ 19,114 $§ (5633) § 13,481 $ 50814

The District also derives revenue from rents received for a
agreement with Veerizon rents received this year totaled $12,44
2020 and ends in 2025, with the option for extensions every five
at the end of the term. Annual rent increases 20% with each e
to exercise the option to extend, the lease receivable and relate i eflect the

ct property. Under an
ar tern is from April 27,
celable by the tenant

extended terms. income recorded for the year ended June 30, 2 interest
income of $7,298 and miscellaneous income of $11,949.
Future rents to be received on the [ease receivable are a
Year Ending
June 30,
2023 $ 12,441
2024 12,442
2025 _ 12,857
2026 . 14,929
0 5 14,930
81,119
97,343
60,914
$ 306975
Deferred inflo line basis over the entire anticipated lease tern. Activity in the
lease receivable
Balance Net Balance
June 30, 2021 Change June 30, 2022
BUSINESS-TYPE
Lease receivable $ 232,556 3 (5,144) $ 227,412
Deferred inflows - lease $ (225,044) $ 11,949 $  (213,005)

X



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT

Bonds Payable

During the year ended June 20, 2001, the District issued a water revenue bond, series 2000, in the
principal amount of $643,5600. The bond was issued for the purpose of replacement of storage, and
replacement and upgrading of pipe components in the water system. Principal and interest, with a
rate of 3.86%, is payable semi-annually on July 1 and January 1. The bond will mature in full on July
1, 2023. This bond issue was paid in full as of June 30, 2022,

; . le ¥ond, series 2003, in the
principal amount of $1,700,000. The bond was issued i hancement of the water

treatment plant of the District’s public water system. P

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the District issu€d a Jenets it
and sewer bond (additionally secured by pledged wate By, Skties 2010, in the pnncnpal
amount of $1,105,630 all of which had been disbff o the a2 iyne 30, 2017. The bond

District's water system. Principal and intergst, ale pf 24 is pagable semi-annually on
January 1, and July 1. The bond will maturejin { L pterest paid and accrued on this
debt totaling $25,628 was capitalized as.parligfthe waitr s mprawements. Remaining principal
balance due on this bond payable afJuhe 38;" Wil '

3, improving, e ending the District's water system.
9%his payable monthly. Loan will mature in full on August 1,
N Wis note payable at June 30, 2022 was $758,180.

he fiscal year ended JOQE 30, , @ Bistrict obtained a term loan from the United States
ent of Agriculture, in tAg@knount of $1,382,000 for the purpose of replacing the interim
iEt'd sewer system improvements. Principal and interest with a rate

Ban will mature in full June 18, 2053. Interest paid and accrued

During the fiscal y&ai d Jdne 30, 2012, the District issued a general obligation (limited tax) water
bond (additionally sequréd By pledged revenue), series 2012, in the principal amount of $1,710,000.
The bond was issued Yof the purpose of refunding the series 2007 bonds issued during the year
ended June 30, 2007. The refunding redeemed the remaining balance of 2007 bonds in the amount
of $1,790,000 resulting in a premium on issue recognized in the amount of $157,647, The principal
amount allocated to and secured by sewer revenues is $1,111,500, with the remaining $598,500
allocated to and secured by water revenues. The premium on the issue is likewise allocated
$102,471 to sewer operations and $55,176 to water operations. Principal and interest, with a
variable interest rate, is payable semi-annually on November 1, and May 1. The bond will mature in
full on November 1, 2026. Remaining principal balance on this bond payable at June 30, 2022 was
$685,000.

As of June 30, 2022, the District held $384,268 in three separate state investment pool accounts and
$2,925,378 in three separate bank accounts that were restricted for use in accordance with the bond

and loan agreements.



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the bonds at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
Water Fund

2023 3 230884 $ 54,027 $ 284911
2024 236,733 291,771
2025 244 519 291,666
2026 252,500 291,491
2027 142,966 174,520

2028-2032 368,160

2033-2037 117,304

2038 and Later 456,356

2,049,422

Sewer Fund

2023 157,600
2024 154,289
2025 154,094
2026 153,769
2027 156,499
2028-2032 285,244
2033-2037 290,091
8 2 143,194 824,232
578,982 2,175,818

$ 1,118,722 $ 4,764,980

2, the following changes in liabilities reported in long-term debt:

Balance Additions Balance Due within
June 30, 2021 (Reductions)  June 30, 2022 One year

GOVERNMENT A

Lease liability $ 19,114 3 (5633) $% 13,481 $ 5814
Compensated absences 16,908 (1,070) 15,838 12,890
$ 36,022 $ (6,703) $ 29,319 $ 18,704

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Compensated absences $ 39966 $ (1,5619) $ 38,447 $ 33,747
Premium on bond issue 108,360 (4,334) 104,026 -
Bonds and notes payable 4,079,617 (433,359) 3,646,258 341,020

$ 4,227,943 $ (439,212) § 3,788,731 $ 374,767

28

3/



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN

General Information About the Pension Plan
Plan Description

The Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada (PERS or the System) administers a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employees’ retirement system which includes
both Regular and Police/Fire members. The system was established by the Nevada Legislature in
1947 effective July 1, 1948. The system is admlnlstered to prap 'de a reasonable base income to

Benefits, as required by the Nevada Revised Statutes [fl afe fetermijned by the
number of years of accredited service at time of retiregfigpt a ot s higtiesbaverage
compensation in any 36 consecutive months with spectal prayisib 1 iritering the
System on or after January 1, 2010 and July 1, 2015 ayiments to whlch paﬂucnpants or
their beneficiaries may be entitled under the plafiine i ifits, disability benefits, and
survivor benefits.

Monthly benefit allowances for members gre
accredited year or service prior to July 1, 20
multiplier is 2.67% of average cdinpg
January 1, 2010, thereisa 2.5%

average compensation for each
nédop and after July 1, 2001, this
ealering the System on or after
ar members entering the System
offers several alternatives to the

embers entering the
Vi years of service, af@

60 with 10 years of service, or at any age with thirty years of
ntering the System on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for

t ag 4 years of service, or age 62 with 10 years of service, or any age with
thirty years Of serti gujsr members who entered the System on or after July 1, 2015, are
eligible for retirafuénbatagess with 5 years of service, or at age 62 with 10 years of service, or at
age 55 with thirty Ygars pf service, or at any age with 33 1/3 years of service.

The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefits allowances is 75% of average compensation.
However, a member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitled to a
benefit of up to 90% of average compensation. Both Regular and Police/Fire members become
fully vested as to benefits upon completion of five years of service.



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Contributions

The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member
contribution rates, is set by statute. New hires, in agencies which did not elect the Employer-Pay
Contribution (EPC) plan prior to July 1, 1983, have the option of selecting one of two contribution
plans. Contributions are shared equally by employer and employee. Employees can take a
reduced salary and have contributions made by the employer (BPC) or can make contributions by
a payroll deduction matched by the employer.

The System’s basic funding policy provides for periodjt ibutighs ata level pattern of cost as a
percentage of salary throughout an employee’s working tifetima ¥order o, accumulate sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due.

The System receives an actuarial valuation on an anryfal B@sigindicating the cantdbulion rates
required to fund the System on an actuarial reserve ba%is. Sanih! slly prade are in
accordance with the required rates established by the gislature. These statutory rates
are increased/decreased pursuant to NRS 286821 a

The actuarial funding method used is the Enl - :
the funding objective and result in a relftivie ol lg nmcontributions requirement as a
percentage of salary,

For the fiscal years ended Junet 30 atl plglver/employee matching rate was
15.25% for Regular and 22 00%far Police/Fire.\ Thi Gygr-pay contribution (EPC) rate was
8% fok Police/Fire.

Ension liability was determined by an actuarlal valuation as of
i bf the net pension liability was based on total contributions due
Fement period. Each employer's proportion of the net pension
mbined employer and member contributions relative to the total

ploye iemrber contributions for all employers for the period ended June 30,
2021. At June'SD, 2824, th# District's proportion was 0.00795%.

For the year ended Jurfe 30, 2022, the District recognized pension expense of $4,646. Amounts
totaling $98,544, resulting from District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. For the year
ended June 30, 2022, the District contributed $163,040 under the statutory requirements based
upon covered payroll of $670,813 which equates to 24.30% overall to the plan.



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and

Deferrod inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)

At June 30, 2022, the District reported deferred oufflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pension from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual
experience

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

Change in assumptions

Changes in proportion and differences
between District contributions and

proportionate share of contributions 297,984

District contributions subsequen
measurement date

$ 894,931

(82,345)
(80,995)
(84,017)
(90,051)
54,180

7,575

$ (275,653)

The net difference between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments
will be recognized over five years, all the other above deferred outflows and deferred inflows will be
recognized over the average expected remaining service lives, which was 6.14 years for the
measurement period ending June 30, 2021.

2028 and later

. 3Y



Indian Hills General improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Pension Liabifities, Pension Expense, Deferred Qutflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions {Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The System’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by a uarial valuation as of that date.
The total pension liability was determined using the followj al assumptions, applied to all
periods included in the measurement:

Inflation rate

Investment rate of return
Productivity pay increase
Projected salary increases

Consumer price index
Other assumptions

yere based on the results of the
r 2016. The discount rate used to

. For this purpose, all contributions that are intended
ir beneficiaries are included, except that projected
rvice costs for future plan members and their

jle to make all projected future benefit payments for current plan
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability as of

38 which determine the investment portfolio target asset allocation are
established by the Retirement Board. The asset allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to

meet the future risk and return needs of the System. As of June 30, 2021, PERS's long-term
inflation assumption was 2.50%.



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022
NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

The following was the Retirement Board's adopted policy target asset allocation as of June 30,

2021:
Target Long-Term Geometric
Asset Class Allocation Expected Real Rate of Return
Domestic Equity 42% 5.50%
International Equity 18% 5.50%
Domestic Fixed Income 28%

Private Markets 12%

of the net pension liability would be if it were g

point lower (6.25%) or 1 percentage-point Hig) 3 it Mscount rate:

1% Increase
In Discount

Net Pension Liability 842008 725325 § 132,333

benefits for curren [plired employees of the State of Nevada and other public employers.
Chapter 287 of the NByAda Revised Statutes established the benefit provisions provided to the
participants of PEBP. These benefit provisions may only be amended through legislation. The
Nevada Public Employees Benefits Program issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for PEBP. That report may be obtained
by writing to the Nevada Public Employees Benefits Program, 801 South Stewart Street, Suite 1001,
Carson City, Nevada 89701, or by calling (775) 684-7000.

The District only participates in the retirement benefits portion of the plan which provides for health
insurance for retired employees. Retirement benefit costs are billed to the employer as they occur.
Currently, the District has one retired employee that falls under the retirement benefit provisions.
There were no amounts paid under this provision for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2022, June 30,
2021, and June 30, 2020.

33 3@



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 9 — EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

The NRS require that governmental fund budgetary controls be exercised at the function level. For
the year ended June 30, 2022, total expenditures exceeded appropriations for the following funds
and/or functions, which are potential violations of the NRS:

Benefits expense governmental fund, general government function $ 17,541
Benefits expense governmental fund, public works function $ 13,109
Benefits expense enterprise fund, operating expense function $ 7.114

NOTE 10 — ADOPTION OF GASBS No. 87, LEASES

As discussed in Note 1, during the fiscal year ended June 30, &(
GASBS No. 87, Leases. Under this standard, leases should be recqgni z :
circumstances that exist at the beginning of the period of implemeniationsr, i iedQ @adier pariods, the

mted the provisions of

beginning of the earliest period restated. As a result of the impl&ge Jte District
recorded a lease liability for leased office equipment and a nght-of -use & ment. As those
leases were both incurred in years prior to the year ended Jul e Digigict elected to record both
the liability and right-of-use asset as of June 30, 2021, reduitingip a he govbinment fund net assets
in the amount of $494, an increase in long term asselg oj% an i ; ong term liabilities of
$19,114. This restatement is reflected in the statergel Vet [&ment of activities.

Bceivable representing the
discounted cash flow of the rental income
beginning of the period of implementati pbtained in years prior to the year
ended June 30, 2022, the District ele 8 retaivalie #nd the related deferred inflow as of
June 30, 2021, resulting in.ag i i 5.4 the amount of $7,512, anincrease in
long term assets of $&t ndag i ferred inflows of resources of $225,044. This restatement
is reflected in the (=" - -



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY |

Qﬁ

38



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position — Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

BUDGETED AMOUNTS Variance
Favorable
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable)
OPERATING REVENUE
Water & sewer user fees $ 2,368,000 $ 2,368,000 $ 2,561,234 3 193,234
Gain on disposal of assets - - 6,277 6,277
Grant income - - -
Miscellaneous income 12,442 17,507 5,065
Connection fees 51,300 352,266 300,966
Total Operating Revenue 2,431,742 937,284 506,542
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries & wages 501,085 0,9 70,128
Employee benefits 190,900 198,044 {7,114)
Services & supplies 681,450 635,595 45,855
Capital outlay 577,000 231,106
Depreciation I : 5,650
Total Operating Expenses ; : 1° 345,625
Operating Income 411,374 851,067
NONOPERATING REVENUE {EXPE
Interest income 8,523 4,473
Interest expense ¢ (113,958) 13,825
(123,733) (105,435) 18,298
(563,426) 305,939 869,365
- (63,137) {63,137)

$ (563,426) 242802 § 806,228

Add back capital 8 345,894
Less difference be grision expense and contributions 104,976
Change in Net position of Enterprise Fund $ 693,672



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Schedules of Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY
Nevada State Public Employees’ Retirement System

District's
proportionate
share of the

Plan fiduciary

District's District's net position as
proportion of proportionate a percentage
the net share of the of the total
Year Ended pension net pension pension
June 30 liability (asset)  liabiity (asset) i

2014 0.01011% $ 1,053,893 $ 76.31%
2015 0.01013% $% 1,160,372 75.13%
2016 0.00923% $ 1,241,485 72.23%
2017 0.00938% $ 1,247,834 218.76% 74.42%
2018 0.01189% § 18.60% 75.24%
2019 0.00840% $ 209.44% 76.46%
2020 0.00783% $ 205.13% 77.04%
2021 561,231 129.24% 86.51%

37 (/ O



Indian Hills General improvement District
Schedules of Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS
Nevada State Public Employees’ Retirement System

Contributions Contributions

in Relation to as a % of

Actuarially the Actuarially Contribution Covered- Covered

Year Ended Determined Determined Deficiency mployee Employee

June 30 Contributions Contributions {Excess Payroll

2014 % 152,535 $ 142,046 $ 24.58%
2015 % 151,925 3 145,533 $ 24.97%
2018 % 82,017 $ 78,432 $ 14.35%
2017 % 85,610 $ 84,584 $ 14.83%
2018 $ 111,727 $ 110,609 $ 14.91%
2019 §$ 82,470 3 81,104 14.83%
2020 $ 84,637 $ 81,562 156.35%
2021 % 89,140 3 83629 14.90%

" il



&

SUPPLEMENTARY § TION

4




Indian Hills General Improvement District
General Fund
Schedule of Expenditures
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

(Page 1 of 2)

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Board of trustees 7,375
Equipment rental 6,813
Fuel expense 211
Insurance 16,442
Office expense 37,035
Other expenses 6,012
Payroll taxes and benefits 36,841
Professional fees 109,670

Repairs and maintenance

Safety program

Salaries and wages
Telephone 15,659
Travel and training 1,101
Utilities 5,588
Capital outlay -
Total General Government 289,182

PUBLIC WORKS

Board of trustees 3,688
Fuel expense 2,181
16,295
673
50,009
16,730
26,492
1,704
90,465
747
5,348
116,326
330,658

40



Indian Hills General Improvement District

General Fund
Schedule of Expenditures

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

CULTURE AND RECREATION
Board of trustees
Equipment Rental
Fuel expense
Insurance
Other expenses
Racreation expense
Payroll taxes and henefits
Professional fees
Reapairs and maintenance
Safety program
Salaries and wages
Contracted labor
Telephone
Travel and training
Utilities
Capital outlay
Total Culture and Recreation

Total Expenditures

(Page 2 of 2)

930,366

41

4y



Indian Hills General Improvement District

SERVICE AND SUPPLIES
Bad debt recovery
Board of trustees fees
Fuel expense
Garbage expense
Insurance
Lab Fees
Office expense
Other expense
Professional fees
Permit fees
Repairs and maintenance
Safety program
Telephone
Travel and training
Treatment chemicals
Utilities
Water Costs

Total Service and Supplies

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Services and Supplies
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Business-Type Activities

Water Sewer
3,781 2,738 6,519
7.375 7.375 14,750
5,274 4,580 9,854
{931)

16,297
5,724
1,903
6,807

62,087

199,007

42

$ 635595

4



REPORTS ON INTERNAL

O\

ROL

H



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of the
Indian Hills General Improvement District

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govihg entAudmng Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial stategmentLof the gébernmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate repfaini Frmation of the indian Hills
General Improvement District as of and for the year ended Jgn ithihe related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Indian i fament District's basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financia! stateme
Improvement District's internal control over financial pél
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances faf th
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing a
Improvement District's internal control. Accordingly
District’s internal control.

red Indian Hills General
o determine the audit
dpinion on the financial

. tHe Indian Hills General
ibinion on the effectiveness of the

A deficiency in internal control exists whep { ]
employees, in the normal course of peffohT )5, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely has By or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such iifat there s e B5sibility thata ma enal misstatement of the entltysf inancial
statements will ngf be prevertsg, or t ed'@ndeorrected in a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a«aml i dendes, in iMtgmmakcontrol that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet importagténg 1 by \groed

trol does not allow management or

and was not'desidn i cies in internal control over financial reporting that might be
GSESE igheigs. Given these limitations we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control thatge tansider to be rpét

have not been identil

lal weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that

47



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Indian Hills General Improvement District's
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, praviding an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matter that is
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testlng ofi
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effe
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perform
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compli
suitable for any other purpose.

hal control and compliance and
tity's internal control or
th Government Auditing
is communication is not

Carson City, Nevada
November 28, 2022

4



19



To the Board of Trustees of the
Indian Hills General Improvement District

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Indian Hills General Improvement District for the year
ended June 30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated November 28, 2022. Professional standards
require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility under U. S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated April 8, 2019, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements giapa red by management with your
oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects in conformity henetally accepted accounting
principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve yi of your responsibilities.

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Finangl

Our responsibility for the other information in the Management's Disgussib 8IS Which gantains the
District's financial information and report does not extend beyondib&nancial i ign I@éntifed in the
audit report. We do not have an obligation to perform any procedureSio t H1

information contained in the Management's Discussion and.Armaiysis. it h pever, read the information
contained therein. As a result, nothing came to our atteniitn (hat cabse igliets that such information,
or its manner of presentation, is materially inconsisteft w forhyati ganngr of its presentation

appearing in the financial statements.

Significant Audit Findings

statements. We na

o hy the governmental unit during the year for which there is
a lack of authdritg

are are no significant transactions that have been

e financial statements prepared by management and are based
68 about past and current events and assumptions about future
g papticularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
f that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those

sE[SitY g@ifecting the financial statement was management's determination that
all accounts receivable ‘80 days oldorJess are collectible at year end. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develgp thid@slimate of collectability in determining what is reasonable in relation to the

50



Difflcuities Encountered In Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. The following material misstatements detected as a
result of audit procedures were corrected by management:

1. Record adjustments necessary to comply with GASB 68 increasing net income by $158,283.

2. Record adjustments to accounts receivable and related allowancef@gcounts increasing netincome by
$61,831.

3. Record adjustment to capitalize assets expensed in the£mg

The total net income effect of all adjustments proposed and recird
income by $543,149.

iehd was to decrease net

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define adisas
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not pé
to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We af
during the course of our audit.

hanagement as a financial
athat could be significant
glisagreements arose

Management Representations

We have requested certain representation
representation letter dated November £8

re included in the management

Management Consuillati

in some caseggim jecide Uit With other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, sini&ris pin irtaln, situations. If a consultation involves application of
an accougfingprinci Rents| unit's fikghcial statements or a determination of the type of
auditor's dpinioh, ad o those statements, our professional standards require the

consulting acepunts i d&termine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, thehg wete afiong with other accountants.

We generally discuss a vagj patters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management&@chyyear prior to retention as the governmental unit's auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the noffhal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition of our retention.

As required by generally accepted auditing standards and the terms of our engagement, in planning and
performing our audit, we considered the internal control solely to determine the auditing procedures to be
employed for the purpose of enabling us to express our opinion on the financial statements and not to for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting.
Therefore, we express no opinion or other form of assurance thereon.

5/



A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. QOur report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards dated November 28, 2022, noted no
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.

It should be noted, however, that the excess expenditures over appropriations detailed in Note 9 represent
potential violations of the Nevada Revised Statutes. Management sh take care to monitor budgets
closely and request budget changes and/or augmentation from
avoid budget overruns in the future.

This information is intended solely for the use of management
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties’

Carson City, Nevada
November 28, 2022



AGENDA ITEM 6.

Discussion and possible action to approve a
quote from Maxwell Products Inc. in the amount
of $10,150.00 for 15,000 pounds of crack seal
material. (General Manager, Chris Johnson)

53



P Maxwell A
s
Accept B 11/30/2022 Quote# 5516
7 A PRODUCTS INCORPORATED PLEY "
Ship By 12/23/2022
650 South Delong Street » Salt Lake City, UT 84104
. Quote Info
Customer Ref No Payment Term Est Delivery Date Sales Rep
- Cash Account - N/A Chris Robb
801-803-9281
chris.robb@maxwellproducts.com
Customer Delivery Address Project Info
Indian Hills Improvement District Indian Hills Improvement District 6 pallets
3394 James Lee Park Rd. 3394 James Lee Park Rd,
Carson, NV 89705 Carson, NV 88705
L Ray: 775-800-3608
~ [tems
Description Quantity um Rate Total
Elastoflex 430 (ZipBox} 15,000 itB 0.5800 8,700.00
Freight 1 EA 1450.0000 1,450.00
Quote Totals
Sub Total 10,150.00
Taxes 0.00
Total 10,150.00
— Conditions

- Accepting quote or ptacing an order constitutes acceptance of our standard terms and conditions
- Quote only valid if accepted by 11/30/2022 and shipped by 12/23/2022
- Wa reserve the right to reduce or increase quoted prices and product availabllity without notice in the event of

significant market volatility or supply chain disruption. We will always do our best to provide notice in advance of

changes in pricing or product avallabllity

\.

—

Return Policy

No goods will be accepted without prior consent in writing from Maxwell Products. Pallets must be unopened with
original labelling intact in like new condition. All retumns must be freight prepald by the customer and retumed within

30 days of the original shipment. Credit for returned materia! will be applied to future

made to order and may not be retumed.

Acceptance

The above price(s), spacifications and conditions of initialed Hems are satisfactory ar

web: maxweliproducts.com | phone: 801.972.2090 | {

§t’A'¢MS =

7is Guete = 148 / /b

S HIGP AL

fNelw DIRG

S9c/ 1

54



AGENDA ITEM 7.

Discussion and possible action to approve
commencement of fundraising via a “buy a brick”
program for purchase and donation of engraved
paver bricks to the hardscape segment of the
South Sunridge Dog Park project.

(Vice Chairman, Dale Dunham)

55



10L1S1q JUBWaAoldw| [BlBuay) s||iH uelpu|
}o9loid uonesijipneayg
av—om.—muﬂlh:m:

jesodoid

L
Y e o

1




=
N~
_L.J

uose\ uewAsuinopr -

lasjunjoA pooydoqyblaN -

ueuliey adlA - dio Ssii'H uelpuj -
weyunq ajeq

uoI}oNpPosuj




‘aoueuajulew pue uopdwnsuod ‘gl sialsweled uonedioiued, JUaAd

J8]em 89NpaJ SOSEJ SWOS Ul pue syied 10 uosiad B 9JRIOWBWWOD 0} AYUNWLIOD
ano Ajaneaq ||im 3oefold siy ‘'snuoq e sy ainua ay} abebus o Ayunpoddo
-a01d aseyoind Jomo| SASIYOE 0} 1SaIalUl ay) 9ABY 9\ "92IAISS AJUNWILWOD
WwNWIXew Jaysjoq o} Aay s1 Aujiqepioyy 1sed pue juawund Jouoy 0} si [eob ay |

Qma_o_tmn_ 8 I 10} o_nmEot,q oMe|N ¢
AlUnWwwo JI0UOH R spunolur) Ajnneag -
90UBUSIUIB[\ puB 3SM I81BAA 9oNpay -

Atewiung )o9foid



0GZ 1B SaWO09 uonaNpal 1S0J 1Xau ay |
‘S19pioq eaue 0} Juswaoe|d Josuods HwiT

papun) | 94 yum 10afoid 81eUIPI00)) 1509 103l0.d |jelseno Bulkelyap
-syouq paseyoind/paieuop aijgnd ‘wniwaad 1. syoLIg gxg Jap.lo siosuodg

Yyum uona|dwod |nyssa0ons sy} aziwndo "sn|d 1S09 Je S)OL] @X{y JOPIO SUSZIID
-uoNe20] | 0] 1dasuo?) jo Joold-D0d Jwi ‘Aljigeploye saaosduwi soUQ +0G

"90UBUSIUIBW 1O} SBAIDSDI aA0Idwil
pue 1s0o uole||eisul Aeyap 0 syosloid

Juswaoe|d siosuodg "sA uazin) ajeubiseq -
SYOLIg +0G 40} suoneuop/sabpald aAalyoy -
90d SiYl 10} eale anoidde / auyeg -

108l0.d | DY yum uoneuipiood aaolddy
buisieipunj uels 01 giHH| wouy [eaosddy -

saAno3(qo

O~

N



(9|gel ssay2) uonoajal pue diysmo||os 1o} ‘uoneoynneaq yled ay) Ul pa)sSaA awos9q O

seale anbiun Buneald ajiym ‘uondwnsuod sjuedidiued ‘sjueAlas ALunwIwoD e
Jajem Bupnpal eaie sselb pazijnniapun 1IN0 puels pue sauo paAo| Buriouoy
aoe|dal 0] pajeolidal aq Aew 1ey) Aoebo| Bunse| e anes| 03 Ajlunuoddo
1doouo Jo Jooid-D0d e s 19aloid siy| a1 Allunwwod siayo |esodoud siy |

aoueuauiew § uondwnsuod Jslem adnpay
syJed uno ul apud AJlunwwod sjowold
990IA18S AllUNWIWOD JIOUOH -

s}ijouayg Ad)



‘slequiaw AJIUNWIwod/pieoq paisalaul

Jo asiuadxa Buisieipuny ay) Buibeiaas) "JOUISIp 8Iud
pue ‘ssauisnq |eoo| Buiyoeoidde Aq 3} SS0JO. JusWwaAowW syool sselb e se
Juawasiopus a)e10dioo uieb 0] adoy app sjuswes.topua jeuonippe uieb o} adoy app

obed 1xau uo }nsal aJleuuonsanb aag

sjuawasiopuly

R S -3

bl



{SaU0 PBAO0| JaquIBWa)
0} Aem A|aA0| i "210§2q OS JUOP dARY | @
"*'0g a8y ul paseld aq ) jey) 1sanbal (s
| ouq e aseyoind | J1 jey) 1ssnbai (1m @
**9AQ| B JO A|[wiey au) 0] Juasald Jo daay
0} Y21q eoldal | +| ui pajsase) we | @
paneifius aapelowawwos e Buneuop
/BuiAng Ul pajsasdiul JON we | oN @
Yolq paaeibus sAeIoWSWWOD
e Bugeuop/BuiAng u pajsasaiul we | soA @

sasuodsal |2
(uoijoayai Jo asoeld e se syded QIOH| 1e seyouaq
Jeau uone|jeisul 1o} ‘Ajilie) JNOA Uj SUOBWIOS JOUOY 0} 46°6L$ 1€ ¥O1IQG B 31eUOp/ANg NOA PINOAA

1BYI0 %56 -
onnebaN  %epL -
SANISOd +%Z'9L *

)yoeqpooa4 alleuuoisan



‘uondwnsuod Jajem adonpal Jayuny "SUOYJe [|e1sul/aseyaind jueliem o} WJ
01 (syded pue spunoib qIHHI) suoneoo) paAalyoe usaq sey A1b sjgesoae) e aouo
1011SIP J2Y10 Ul s109foud aunyny 1oj syue|q aoe|dal ues SYoLIq pazijeuosiad
1saJajul o1jgnd alow ajedionue ‘pays|dwod ‘eale abesanod paulep 919|dwod 0}
100load suo saas 21gnd auy adsuQ paj|e1sul 8q ued 1S02 JaMOJ 1B S Juelg

paseyolnd ale s$)ouqg | ppe se pasinguwial agq ued spun4 s
uona|dwod aypadxa 0] Spunj aAlasal Yled yJewie] -
Buisielpuny uibaqg 0} Junodoe ue ajeubisaq -
:0] pJeoq wodJj |eaosdde 1sanbay
(S)ienpiaipul oyoads Jouoy 0} 00| $ buibpsid tJeluesald -
suoljeuop pJeoq Joj [ejo} 00S$ JO yolew Xep =
uoneuop Jaqwiaw pieoq yoea 1oy 0oL ordn -

Juapisas wou) abpa|d snowAuouy

guisieipung



bt

6
£TUSZI) TZuazi) gTuAZRD 6USZNID guaznd TSUYd
9zusZII) ozuaznn pTusznD guaznn ZUazZID
SzuszRI) 6TUIZND €TusznD ZuaznD TuszZD =TS
62Uz peusznn gTusznd ZTuazZID guazny 005S$dv
gzuazi) £TUZ1) TTUaZ0N) Suaznn 00z321ea g
gzuazn) Zguaznn 9TuUAZII) oTuaZnD YUz STERR

66°62$®9¢ (.8X.p) ey uianed



oT

-y
fosd 3211g 21nIN4/30URUSIUIBL 10 DAIDSDI BIURIEY  $9°E8YS |m~_
9£'9£¥ 15~ 2deoYS pasIAsy
00°00L$ P38pa|d ASUO paas
9€'9€T'2$- 98enoys
¥9°6L0°TS 009TZ'ES 150) |ej0L
9692  6v°/S @ 9t  ||easu| 00°0T6'TS E€EETIS @ vl ||eisu)
[vvT leo] | 000T8S 0SZ7ZS @ 9€ panesdug 00'0T8$ 0SZZ$ @ 98 panesduy
0005 00°0$ @ 80T uelg 00°98%S 0SS ©@ 80T 3ueg
9t 80T |[S|e10L qnQIOfIeI0| T ‘SUSZIID OE ¥21q PIARIBUS/66°6Z$E ITVD NOILNAINLNOD NOILLVYINDTVI 1S0D

paaeidu3 jue|g

ajeull}siy }so) ey jesodoid



T9uazIl TE) ua E)
TSuUazII) St 9]
ua TZuaziy
») STUdZIN) 8] 8 Yo
] 6uaziy £uazny
uaznl VE) VE) ua ua _ VE)
9uazni) QguazIU) 14 9) i 6€ .uq }
9gquUaZIND
osuazn)
OguaziN) F4 . 4 o) TuUd D . zuszny
gzusziy . .
Ooguaznl .
TuazNI)
guaznl
65U=Z111D ua yua tua 8EUIZID -
! §QuUazIND
6tuazn)
gyuaziud
qzuaziyl VE) 1 - E)
Z 12 6TUBZAD o) L ») o) 1
gTuazn)
usziy
- Tuaznl
Sud psuaznl pEUd )
N_w b) J 9 Zruaznid [EUdZIN
uazi ua VE] ua ua 0
.H. N_u_ ) guazn)
6¢ o] vt 1D 8Tuaz) sqoy
ZTuazi)
N_ quaz) 009s$
Suazi pua o) ua us
€ gguazI) €€ 9]
czuaznl / 007$31ea NE
] Tuazijt G
) I TTuaZnl
3 o) uazi) 3 )
Zquazii) . pus o) . ua - ]
ovuszi)
SEUaZIY
N_H_ ZEUIZIND
NE TeEuazi
8quaziy quazily 9Tu=Z211) D )
oTuazll
puaziy

66°625©69 (.8X.¥) qg uianed



fo4d yo1q 24NINy/adUBUIIUIBW 10) dAISSAI Bdueleq TE'6/8S

lmm
69'0%70'TS- 25e110YS PasIndY

[vrT

[ejo ._._

69
paneadug

SL
queld

00°00L$ Pa3pa|d Asuoy paas
69'0%2'TS- a8enoys

1£'690C$
I891SS  6v'LS @ 69 IIBsu

0S°795‘TS  05°CTS ® 69 poaesdu3
0005 00'0S @ S.  duelg

$|E10) qNSI011EI0| T ‘SUIZILD OF R21q PareIBUd/66°625® I1VD NOILNGIYLNOD

00'0T8'ES

00°0Z6'TS EEETS
06'265'TS  05°2TS
0S'LEES  0S'¥S

b7

150 |e30L

@ T ||eIsu|

@ 69 paAesdu]

® SL uelg
NOILLVINITVYD LS00

ajeul}s3y }so0) qg jesodoid



o
-

T

£TuaZ1) Tzusznn STuazZAN 6UIZNID guazii) TSUYD

gzuazn ozusznId yTusZND guazal zuazn

GzuazZIND 6TUSZNID €TUdZNID £UdZ141) TuazNN TEN
6TuazNI) yzuazn ETS ZTuazn 9uaziiI) 00S$90Y

€Uz LTUdZN1) TTUaZN1D quaznI 00z$21ed ME
8zZuazZIND TTuazi gTuaZNI oTuazZNID puazNID RN

6% TTd10%65 01103665 60102 |66 89103 |66$ 20100 J66¢ 90103 f66$ 5010|664 vd107 [66$ £d103 J66% Zd10066S TA10D

66524109 2T 4 (,8X.¥) 99 uianed




1 4

[oad ¥ouq paAelSua ainyny/30uUBUalUIBL 10} BAI3S3) 3oue|eg ¥Z' 11628 |mx

vZ'TERS 93enoyS pasiasy
00'00LS Pa3p8|d Asuol pass
PZTETS 98enoys

v2'6€6'€S

08ZLLS  OvP9S @ ZT 8Xg|leisul
tr'89TTS VLS @ 95T 8xp [|elsu|
00'88T'TS 00665 @ ¢T 8xgdiod

[el0L 000188  0S°CTS @ 9¢ panessu]
00°0% 00°0% @ 80T *ue|g
9t 80T |[SleloLgns  uoNedo|T ‘suaziid Of %2uq pareldus/e6'62$® I1vI NOILNSIYLNOD

paaeidul yue|g

00°'808°€S

00°080°S
00°ZEVS
00°'0T8S
00'98¥S$

EEETS
00°9€$
0S°7T5
(0159 2

150D |ej0L

@ 95T |(eisu

@ 7T gxgdio)

® 9¢ paaesdu]

@ 80T >uelg
NOLLYINDTVI LSOO

ajeul}sy }so9) 9) jesodoid



o1 e = i

"Wied boq

S)olq paseyaind/paleuop angnd 1oy papun} | DY 8y} Jo uonuod siy} 10} 9AI9Sal
sjabie] onsieal pue s2119Yisee ajqelone) adueuaUIBW B 9)eald pue Buipuny
0} Buipioooe ueld ubisap yled 6oq olgnd yum jeusjew adeospley Aewnd

olul pajeibajul aq o1 ubisap adeosplieH a) Aiddns 0} 9ss |[1m 108load siy

lojoenuon yed boq Aqg papinoid eq o |

MIOM JO JUSWdle}S

70 |



oF = T I
=

uonoaloid eniesal 88s gl 01 adl JUIe|\ PUe [[eisul € aseyd

Bunjeaigpunolb 0] sAeq 09-1 AoAlaq pue JapiO ¢ 9seyd
Bujeaigpunolb sAep9-] 01 dVSY Buisieipund{ | aseud

‘'syue|q buisn "sa ubisep adeospiey

a3y} 198w 0] palinbal saoeds dn ||} UBD am .Co_umwcwc‘_@_ar:_ uom.—o‘_n_
lauoos ay) sa|es youqg ay) Jo uonowold . X
8y} J1ouo0s ay| ‘uoiuod adeospiey 104 10} SHOL] mmmaw pue
10} ued 108fosd pue suonoslfoid 1502 _m>O‘_Qn_m pleoq uodn SYIII]
‘ubiseq yued Boq mau ayj Jo uona|dwod °
uo Ajiaeay saijal aulawi 108foad sy @C___mw\mc_w_m.:uc_\_h_. Hels

ajqelaul] yoaloid



LT

-y, .._

Alunwwon &WM 10]0BJUO)) &

H

labeuey ;

[elsuax) E

‘lenoidde pue uonoalip pleoq o} 10algng

J9UUO0SI9d AdY



isuonsany



6T

iejed punoigyoeqg




Corpl $99|Corp2 $99| Corp3 $99] Corp4 $99| Corp5 $99] Corp6 $99] Corp7 $99] Corp8 $99| Corp9 $99
K.Clark Citizend Citizen10 Citizen16
Bill Dale$200 Citizen5 Citizen11 Citizen17
Rob$500 Citizenb Citizen12 Citizen18
Terri Citizenl Citizen7 Citizenl13 Citizen19
Citizen2 Citizen8 Citizen14 Citizen20
Chris J. Citizen3 Citizen9 Citizen15 Citizen2t
COST CALCULATION CONTRIBUTION CALC @5$29.99/engraved bric
Blank 108 @ $4.50 $486.00 Blank 108 @ $0.00 $0.00
Engraved 36 @ $22.50 $810.00 Engraved 36 @ $22.50 $810.00
Corp8x8 12 @ $36.00 $432.00 Corp8x8 12 @ $99.00 $1,188.00
Install 156 @ $13.33  $2,080.00 Install 4x8 156 @ $7.49 51,168.44
Install 8x8 12 @ $64.40 $772.80
Total Cost $3,308.00 $3,939.24
Shortage $131.24

Seed Money Pledged $700.00
Revised Shortage $831.24

| Revisedifnstal covered by RCT Dog Park Project] $2,911 2

9



Corp10 $99Corp11 $9
Blank Engraved
Citizen22 Citizen28 6 6
12 0
Citizen23 6 6
12 0
Citizen24 Citizen29 6 6
12 0
Citizen25 6 6
12 0
Citizen26 - 6 6
12 0
Citizen27 6 6
12 0
Blank Engraved
k 30 citizens, 1 location Sub Totals| 108 36
Total 144

Balance reserve for maintenance/future engraved brick proj

o



AGENDA ITEM 8.

Discussion and possible action to approve Draft
Minutes from the November 16, 2022, Board
Meeting.

77



Minutes
Indian Hills General Improvement District
Board of Trustees Meeting
District Office
3394 James Lee Park Rd. #A
Carson City, NV 89705
November 16, 2022
Regular Board Meeting 6:00 P.M.

Trustees Present: Chairman Kathryn Clark-Ross, Vice Chairman Dunham, Secretary/Treasurer
Sageman, Trustee Eisele.

Trustees Present via Zoom Meeting: none.

Trustees Absent: Trustee Garcia

Staff Present: General Manager Chris Johnson and Administrative Services Supervisor/Human
Resources Brooke Thompson.

Others Present: District Counsel Chuck Zumpft, District Engineer Tim Russell, Peter Beekhof
with Westridge Homes, Michael Stanka with Stanka Consulting and Residents Brian Patrick,
Kendra Wilson, Penni Eisele, Ben Walker, Debbie Walker, and Robert Stulac.

Others Present via Zoom Meeting: none.

6:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting

1. Call to Order
Request that Cell Phones and Pagers be turned off for recording purposes.
Vice Chairman Dunham called the meeting to order at 6:00PM.

2. Pledge of Allegiance: Led by Trustee Eisele.

3. Public Interest Comment: Resident Kendra Wilson stated that she lives on Somerset
and has her business on Mica, the Edward Jones office, she just lost the election. That
is ok, she has a silver lining. She has a proposal or a seed to plant that she would not
have been able to plant while she was a candidate or is she was on the board. Kendra
stated that her day job is she is financial advisor, she met with Stacie when she was
running for the board. Stacie advised her that our reserves earn next to nothing in
interest. Edward Jones where she works has some of the best rates locally for CD’s,
which are no risk FDIC insured investments. A one-year CD is at 4.7%, 3 months
3.9%, as a resident she wants our reserves, her money that she puts in to work for us.
Kendra stated when she talks to her clients, she tells them money not sitting in the
bank is money that you worked for that is not working for you. She does not know
how to go forward with this maybe she needs to bring a more robust proposal to the
board or put something on the agenda. Kendra stated that on her commute to work
she sometimes likes to bike, the Mica Cottages have parking spaces on Vista Grande.
Minutes of the November 16, 2022, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting

-1-

7



4.

Last time she talked to Chris about it they talked about maybe being able to put the
bike path up on the sidewalk, but she brings it up today because they are starting to do
landscaping. She would like an update on that, we need a bike path.

Resident Debbie Walker stated the park on North Sunridge, the swing is so loud
please oil it.

Resident Robert Stulac stated what Kendra brought up. When he was out
campaigning, he was asked when people come to public comment what is the next
step does it get put on the agenda the next month or what happens.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated we can’t discuss it because it is public
comment so the best route is for her can come into the office to meet with us and then
bring the issue to the board if needed. Resident Robert Stulac stated it is a good idea,
he will let her know.

Resident Brian Patrick stated for clarification correct him if he is wrong any citizen
can offer an item on the agenda at any time.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated yes but we need to have something to present
to the board.

Approval of Agenda

General Manager Chris Johnson stated item five Kelli Nevills had to cancel her presentation
tonight, so he requests that we pull item five from the agenda.

Vice Chairman Dunham motioned to approve the agenda with the removal of item five. Trustee
Eisele seconded. Motion carried 4-0. Trustee Garcia was absent from the meeting.

5.

Presentation from KeHli Nevills from Nevada Division of Forestry for Indian Hills GID
to become a Firewise Community.

This item was removed from the agenda.

Public comment: none

Board of Trustees further discussion/comment: none

6.

Discussion and possible action to approve, approve with conditions or deny the request
from Stanka Consulting LTD. on two tentative parcel maps for 3282 Plymouth and
3292 Plymouth and for Indian Hills GID to accept ownership and maintenance of
proposed utilities (water & Sewer) and/or proposed surface improvements (road, curb,
and gutter).

District Engineer Tim Russell stated this item, there has been activity on these two parcels
off Plymouth for quite some time. Annexation and other activities such as right of way. The
applicant has gone through the County process for the tentative map, they are in the process

Minutes of the November 16, 2022, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-2-

19



of finalizing their improvement plans for the final. The tentative map never came to this
board that was an oversight on the Counties part. So, to get the board’s input and approval
the developer is here tonight and to explain the project and answer any questions. The board
can act to accept ownership maintenance of the water and sewer. The other component is the
surface improvements in the cul-de-sacs or roads which have curb and gutter. Typically
District policy is that all district roads should have curb, gutter and sidewalk and the district
will accept them. Tim stated as an example the donut hole over here off Vista Grande as it
comes north are county, basically anywhere in the district you do not see curb gutter and
sidewalk those roads are not maintained by the district. Tim stated the applicant can speak
now and answer questions.

Michael Stanka with Stanka Consulting introduced himself to the board. Michael stated the
water and sewer is pretty straight forward, the recommendation of your engineer suggests
that you accept it. The only thing in question that is pending is the roads will you accept the
maintenance of curb and gutters without sidewalks. The question is if sidewalks are not
installed will the district not accept the maintenance. That is what they want to discuss, is
that a requirement, it is not a County requirement but is it a district requirement. These are
cul-de-sacs so they would be long sidewalks for minimal people. That is what they want to
discuss, would those be required for the transfer of roads to the district. Based on the
location of these cul-de-sacs, they go up to a County road so you would end up with a
sidewalk on these roads, no sidewalk on the County road and then sidewalk again. It is up to
the district to grant a deviation of your requirements or not.

Pete Beekhof the owner of Westridge homes introduced himself, Pete stated that he is the
developer of the homes on Plymouth, last time he was here requesting the easement a
comment was made that the district does not want any more roads. His big question is the
future maintenance of the roads, the cul-de-sac will have six residents on the future Lily
Court and two residents on the other court. His understanding from staff and the engineer’s
recommendation is to have the district not accept dedication of the roads. So, he is supposed
to set up a HOA for 500 feet of road and two houses and 400 feet of road for four houses.
His understanding is the general improvement district is to maintain roads, streets and so
forth. When he mentioned this to Douglas County if they would take care of it, they said no
we will not and told us to come back to Indian Hills GID that is their jurisdiction, that is
theirs to take care of. They are back here trying to make sure they are clear on who is going
to take care of the roads and if it is a matter of them having to put sidewalks in so the district
will take dedication of the roads, they are going to spend more money putting more
improvements in to take care of than just the roads. The sidewalks will go nowhere, there
are no sidewalks to them and having a thousand feet of sidewalk for two houses, the rural
district which is what the County classified it as. Pete stated that he understands there are
County guidelines and District guidelines here they feel like they are caught in the center
here, they feel they are getting taxed without getting representation. They are paying the
same tax as the guy down the road that does not have to maintain his street you do it. He is
not quite sure how that works, that is how he sees it. He knows it comes down to dollars for
maintenance, but taxes are collected on that. He is not sure how that works, he has never sat
on the boards side of the table.

Chairman Clark-Ross stated that she is confused are they Douglas or us. District Engineer
Tim Russell stated they are part of Indian Hills; they have been annexed into Indian Hills

Minutes of the November 16, 2022, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-3-

50



GID.

Chairman Clark-Ross stated ok did we agree to roads and sidewalks, she understood it was
just water and sewer.

District Engineer Tim Russell stated that is one of the challenges here Madam Chairman,
they have gone to the County and gotten a lot of approvals from the County. They are at a
point where they are trying to get the plans finalized and start construction, but they have
never come to the district to formally ask for the district to maintain their roads or water and
sewer, normally that happens six to nine months ago. This is where we have gotten to
unfortunately, if they came to us earlier on, we could have given them conditions that we
would accept if they did certain things. It is late in the game which is one of the challenges
for the board to consider. Ultimately it is up to the board to accept without sidewalk or or
not. Tim stated he is just telling the board what the typical standard and past practice has
been to require curb, gutter, and sidewalk because Indian Hills by nature is more of a
residential community providing those facilities for its residents.

Trustee Eisele stated the one question he has is, previously if we did anything like this it
would include sidewalks and gutters. He understands that if they did sidewalks, it would
come out to a dead end. What happens if we don’t have them put in sidewalks and the
County comes in later on puts a sidewalk in on Plymouth and says we have to put in
sidewalks. Bill stated he is confused, he can see some day where we may have sidewalks
going down the hill, he would hate to not do it and be required to do it later. That is where
he is at now.

Vice Chairman Dunham stated unfortunately when you develop property you have to do
your homework, this one slipped through the crack. Being in a long line of contractors he
knows this falls back on the developer. You have to do your homework if we are going to
have sidewalks the developer installs them. Our district has a different tax rate that is no
different than developers in California, Minnesota and here in Nevada. Eagle Valley
Construction, infrastructure, Millard, Serpo this is something that is a stickler because
someday it might need sidewalks who pays for it at that point. Dale stated in his experience
this is on the developer the six people, people do walk there we don’t need to pick up the
cost to maintain it there are six people involved he recommends you put in the houses, and
we will see what happens in five or ten years.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated he echoes what the other board members have said. His
concern is that we are making a special case for your development because you have x
number of homes, so we might be opening the door for the next developer to come in and
say well I only have this many homes why do I need to do it. If that has been our position
that we require sidewalks, curbs, gutters, and pavement that then we need to stick with that.
From his point of view this is your development not ours, if you want to develop here you
need to meet our standards. He believes the curb, gutter and sidewalks would be put into
County standards before we would accept them. That is his position on it.

Chairman Clark-Ross stated if we, what would this cost,

General Manager Chris Johnson stated he thinks the answer you are looking for are six
residents going to provide an equal amount of taxpayer dollars to pay for those two

Minutes of the November 16, 2022, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-4-

gl



additional roads that we are not going to have the money to maintain in the near future, The
bottom line is no, we have heard this argument from both of the gated communities when
they have asked us to provide maintenance on their roads, they have made the same
argument that they pay taxpayer dollars but what is misunderstood in all of this is taxpayer
dollars are not paid in to pay for your specific street. Taxpayer dollars are paid in for streets
in common so if you use the argument that I pay taxpayer dollars, but I live at the first house
in on Mica Drive should I only pay for eight hundred feet of road, should we look at the
roads and divide it up and pay taxes based off where people live. You could effectively say
that someone who lives on the corner of Indian only uses eight hundred feet of road in the
district so is it fair to tax them on all the district roads and that is not what it is about taxes
are for the common use roads. To say that they are taxpayer dollars and taxpayer dollars are
used to pay for their roads that is not an accurate statement, they are paying for the common
roads. To come in, his opinion those are six additional homes that is an extensive cost of
road maintenance in our future. As an example, today our crew was crack sealing on
Plymouth, typically we try to crack seal a quarter of the district a year. Right now, a pallet of
crack seal has gone from $1,200 to $2,000 he is looking hard at the budget to see how many
more we can buy. Taking on two more roads is adding to the cost of a conundrum that we
are already facing.

Chairman Clark-Ross stated thank you Chris, that was good.

Public comment: Resident Brian Patrick stated that we have annexed people in different areas of
the district like in Jacks Valley without any reconsideration if they form an HOA for the six owners,
they take responsibility for roads with the six owners but continuing on they will pay for water and
sewer. The ownest is not on the district anymore it is on the homeowners. He does not like saying
that. He is not sure if them creating an HOA is a possibility Chuck, but it seems like the only way
out for them.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated he defers to Tim on that. District Engineer Tim Russell stated
that is certainly an option and not uncommon.

Resident Brian Patrick stated that may change the nature of the road that they install, that is a
county issue.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated Tim will the district have an opportunity to inspect all the
underground work before it is accepted and approved. District Engineer Tim Russell stated yes that
would be a requirement and coordinated with the County.

Resident Robert Stulac stated Tim you said seven or eight months ago Douglas County approved
what. District Engineer Tim Russell stated the process for creating lots is you go to the County or
entities involved, the next formal step is a tentative map that gets approved through the County, that
is basically saying this is what we want to do, the County says ok if you want to do that here are all
the conditions you have to meet for us to approve it, once approved then it moves to the
improvement plans and then the final map. The final map is the document that gets recorded that
creates the parcels, physically creates them. That document that cannot happen until the physical
improvements are made. You don’t want to have a situation where maps are created, and no
physical improvements are made so that is the process.

Minutes of the November 16, 2022, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-5-

5



Resident Robert Stulac stated it seems odd that the County would approve that prior to this being
addressed, is that normal.

District Engineer Tim Russell stated no that is not normal as stated before it fell through the cracks.
Tim stated it is a hard thing the frequency of a tentative map process in Indian Hills is one or two in
the last ten years, so the County forgot that they need to check with us.

Resident Robert Stulac stated Robert in their eyes it was all approved, so it sucks.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated County Development emails him with any projects that are
on the horizon, he goes through to see if there are any that apply to us, the vast majority of the time
they do not apply to us but if they do then we can attend the meetings. We did not receive anything
on this project.

Pete Beekhof stated that he believes prior to him buying the property there was a tentative map
already approved for the Dixon split, he does not know if that came to this board or not. They
changed that map so the county made them go back, if they would have done a subdivision map
then they would have gone through a more formal process. He was not told to do anything else. He
feels that, well first he is not asking anyone to pay for anything one the development side. When
they did their homework, the County does not require sidewalks, so they did not know about our
requirements. What the board is telling him, and he thinks they are being very short sighted on this
part is if he spends $40,000 on sidewalks that the district will take dedication of the road and the
sidewalks so now the district is getting twice as many items to take care of so sidewalks and roads,
is that what the board is telling him.

Chairman Clark-Ross stated no that is not what she is saying.

Vice Chairman Dunham stated at this time in conjecture of what will be or what will come that is
down the road. Right now, in his position no we are not, it is bad that you did not follow all the right
things. I guess being a new developer you didn’t know. You are asking to have the same luxuries
they have as residents of Indian Hills; it falls outside the whole. You are shaking your head, Brian.

Resident Brian Patrick stated you guys already accepted them. Vice Chairman Dunham stated he
did not know they accepted anything. What was accepted the water.

District Engineer Tim Russell stated no nothing has been accepted. The primary parcels are annexed
into Indian Hills that is all. Vice Chairman Dunham stated the way he understood with that annex
we are not providing anything other than sewer and water. District Engineer Tim Russell stated the
annexation. Resident Brian Patrick stated what he is saying is if you have annexed them in.

Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated we can not be
having this discussion back and forth. General Manager Chris Johnson stated Madam Chair a matter
of order right now you need to close public comment and give the developer another chance to talk.
You can not have a discussion with the developer or the public and the board during public
comment.

Resident Kendra Wilson stated that she lives close to this on Somerset. She walks her dogs to where
sidewalk ends by Tenant and around. As a neighbor she would love to see an extension of the
sidewalk she would like for board to do a requirement to do sidewalks and also finish up the
sidewalk on Plymouth just as a neighbor she thinks it would really jazz up the place.

Minutes of the November 16, 2022, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-6-

§3



Resident Brian Patrick stated correct him if he is wrong, if you annexed in this group and they are
going to come in and pave a road and put in a sidewalk according to your specifications you have
annexed them in, he does not think you can deny them of this, We had this issue with the 27 homes
up here, same thing. They are jumping through the hoops, it is on us he doesn’t care how long the
street is, it is on us.

Board of Trustees further discussion/comment: Chairman Clark-Ross stated is Brian right, what
is our obligation.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated he is not right, the District’s obligation is to provide services
that it has to the rest of the residents, landowners at the expense of the new landowners. Offers of
dedication are rejected by governing bodies all the time. Most maps have notes from the County
that says we acknowledge the dedication, and we are reserving for acceptance if we want to take it
later. We have obligation to accept offers of dedication provide you do have an obligation to
provide water service and sewer service if they provide for all the infrastructure into their properties
and to the district within our rules, guidelines, and codes with those installations, so you do have
obligations as a result of their property being annexed accepting offers of dedication is not on

that list and you have no obligation to deviate from the district’s customs and rules of sidewalks
unless it serves a benefit to the district to do so.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Mr. Beekhof was not finished.

Peter Beekhof stated Brian made a point, he believes he is right if we jump through your hoops, and
you don’t accept the dedication then we have an escalated issue that could not be resolved here
between us. If he does this, he does not know how we can deny him dedication. The sidewalk going
up Plymouth is County jurisdiction he does not know that we can say he has to do that sidewalk. If
he moves forward and he does install sidewalks, will we have an issue of the district accepting
dedication of the sidewalk and roads now you have two things to maintain.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated he is 100% accurate that portion of Plymouth is the County,
where the sidewalk ends that is the end of Indian Hills and the start of County. We cannot ask them
to install sidewalk there that is County where they end are county.

Peter stated and they, the County just did a bunch of improvements there. He has seen people
walking there he is not saying there is not a need for it. He is saying that it is not part of his
requirement to meet our requirements but if that is the way they have to go ok, then the district has
sidewalks and streets to maintain, do you want more 1200 feet of sidewalk to maintain.

Vice Chairman Dunham stated because of on fault of his own, sometimes things slip through the
cracks. If he goes forward with doing the curb and sidewalk will this road still going to be County.
General Manager Chris Johnson stated no we are not talking about that section of Plymouth that is
County, this road would be inside the district.

Vice Chairman Dunham stated he is confused he is trying to justify having the equipment our
resources going down the road. At this point he thinks the six owners should share their costs have
their own easements and take care of it. It should be on them it serves no other purpose than to the
residents going to and from their homes.

Trustee Eisele stated because of the road and sidewalk coming out to a county road he can’t see any
reason to have sidewalks there. If he knew in the future that the county would put in sidewalks on

Minutes of the November 16, 2022, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-7-

¥y



Plymouth, then he would say yes but he has no idea what will happen. Bill stated that he is confused
are there more than those houses going in there.

Peter Beekhof stated no that is it.

Chairman Clark-Ross stated she hates to say this but her experience with the County is we will not
ever see any sidewalks there.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated that he can’t say anything it is a County road. When we
redid Plymouth, the County also redid their portion of it so we could share the costs and then the
county decided not to do it at the same time, so we did our section and that was it. The thing with
sidewalks not meeting up with other sidewalks, it happens all the time it is all over the district. One
of the reasons we are so strict with the sidewalks is for ADA compliance

Pete Beekhof stated that he has not seen Douglas County build a road or sidewalk in the last 20
years. He does not see the County doing anything. There is very little room for curb and gutter and
sidewalk on Plymouth, they would have to have a railing because of the slope on the side. Pete said
originally, they tried to not do any curb or sidewalk, but the County shot it down because of the
roads. They were hoping not to have the cul-de-sac either, but the County also shot it down. Pete
stated he was not here when this was annexed in but his understanding from the annexation is that
those tax dollars from those parcels or a portion of go to Indian Hills GID to maintain those streets.
Everyone keeps saying we are not paying our share, but those homeowners will be paying them
taxes and their share for roads, someone Indian Hills will be collecting those tax dollars.
Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated maybe the misunderstanding is that the taxes are not for the
roads, they are not all for the roads we still have water and sewer to maintain.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated the sewer and water funds are enterprise funds which means
they are funded out of the sewer and the water operations. The ad valorem fund goes into parks,
streets and maintenance of the district. Chris stated what benefits are those roads bringing to the
district, they bring benefit to those six homes. It is the same thing in the gated communities they
have their own roads and maintain them.

Pete Beekhof stated they are your people. To have a HOA for six homes it’s not ok, they would
have to a president, vice president, etcetera. They offer dedication of things all the time when the
dedication is not taken; they reserve the right to take dedication at a later date. He doesn’t know if
that is an option for the district.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman asked why the County isn’t taking responsibility for these roads, he
understands the annexation which makes us responsible for water and sewer but not the roads,
sidewalks, landscaping, or anything else.

District Engineer Tim Russell stated the County as Mr. Beekhof indicated will typically do the
deferment for responsibility of roads.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated we know our road condition here, the condition they are in
and what we are trying to do. The County is much worse off, there are roads in the County that
make our bad roads look pretty nice and on top of that they are trying to build new roads to deal
with the traffic. The County doesn’t want to take on more roads.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated so we don’t want it the County doesn’t want it so where does
that leave him. General Manager Chris Johnson stated well that is the conundrum.

Peter Beekhof stated he is thinking why doesn’t he just get undedicated/ unannexed and then go to
the County and say here you go these are your roads and they will get an outside source for water
and sewer from the GID. General Manager Chris Johnson stated but you have to be annexed to get

Minutes of the November 16, 2022, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-8-

59



water and sewer. Pete stated if I give you more sidewalk then it doesn’t get maintained he does not
know how to get out of. No one has money for road maintenance he gets it. It seems short sided to
him to ask for more to maintain. Secretary/Treasurer Seigman asked if we have the same option as
Douglas County to defer acceptance of the dedication.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated that is an option but again you are foreseeing Mr. Beekhof to
take a gamble on that. If in five years you bring this back and there are no sidewalks it is still
against the policy and if he puts the sidewalks in now then we don’t accept it he put up a lot of
money for infrastructure for nothing.

Trustee Eisele stated is the discussion to have sidewalks or no sidewalks in that area.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated no the bottom-line discussion is we going to accept
dedication of those roads and maintenance of the roads whether there are sidewalks or not, whether
there are sidewalks is our policy. Even if there are sidewalks there, we don’t have to accept the
dedication of those roads or assume the maintenance of those roads.

Chairman Clark-Ross stated so the bottom line is those roads forget the sidewalks or anything else,
just the roads. General Manager Chris Johnson stated yes that is why we are looking at a
conundrum right now, if they put in sidewalks and we defer five years down the road and then they
come back and ask again they are putting in additional costs, it pushes it onto them later. Right now,
it is not for discussion whether they put in sidewalks, the question is do you want to accept the
maintenance of the roads.

Pete Beekhof stated if we decide to put in sidewalks then we can come back to another meeting to
ask for dedication.

Vice Chairman Dunham asked District Counsel Chuck Zumpft what our legal obligation is.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated he believes that historically when similar projects have been
offered for dedication if those applicants demonstrated that they have complied with all the district
rules and expectations and historically under those circumstances the district has always accepted
the offers of dedication then you are a little harder pressed to deny it because you should have a
reason not to continue your historical morals. Chuck stated to answer your question no he does not
think so.

Trustee Eisele asked General Manager Chris Johnson for his recommendation.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated he recommends that we accept the water and sewer facilities
because that is required for them to go on and at this point, he recommends that we do not accept
the surface improvements, they go against our policies, you all know it is black and white. Those of
you that worked with me on the board know that he is all our precedence. If you make an exception
once you have to make an exception again and again.

Mr. Stanka if we included the sidewalks would that change your recommendation on accepting the
maintenance. General Manager Chris Johnson stated historically we have accepted it if the
developer meets all conditions and requirements. At this point he can’t say yes or no but based on
how this has been handled in the past he would say yes but he cannot speak for the board.

Trustee Eisele motioned to approve the request from Stanka Consulting LTD. on two tentative
parcel maps for 3282 Plymouth and 3292 Plymouth and for Indian Hills GID to accept
ownership and maintenance of proposed utilities (water & Sewer). Chairman Clark-Ross
seconded. Motion carried 4-0. Trustee Garcia was absent from the meeting.

Minutes of the November 16, 2022, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-9.

80



Trustee Eisele motioned to approve with conditions the request from Stanka Consulting

LTD. on two tentative parcel maps for 3282 Plymouth and 3292 Plymouth and for Indian

Hilis GID to accept ownership and maintenance of proposed surface improvements (road,

curb, and gutter) on the condition that they install surface improvements to comply with

Indian Hills GID’s specifications. Chairman Clark-Ross seconded. Motion carried 4-0. Trustee
Garcia was absent from the meeting.

7. Discussion and possible action to accept a bid for the Sanitary Sewer Lift Station
Bypass #3 project from Knox Excavation, Inc. in the amount of $57,725.00.
General Manager Chris Johnson stated he defers to Tim. District Engineer Tim Russell
stated what you have, back in October they attempted to get some bids for the lift station
bypass at lift station three on South Sunridge. There is no way to maintain the lift station
without shutting the whole thing down, this has been going on for a while when John was
here. This is to connect and block off the sewer going to the lift station pump from that new
manhole to the force main. This is step one of a twostep process. They attempted to get
some bid months ago, attempted again and finally got bids on this. Knox came back with a
bid that is within our budget so that is great. Tim stated at this point he recommends that the
board award this contract to Knox Excavation.
General Manager Chris Johnson stated this as Tim stated was part of last year’s budget it
was budgeted for at $70,000, we are on budget, and it has been approved for. The bid came
in lower so that is good.
Chairman Clark-Ross stated that she was impressed that we saved money. General Manager
Chris Johnson stated for this to come back lower in this economy he was shocked.
Vice Chairman Dunham stated we only got two bids.
General Manager Chris Johnson stated that was it and that is the second attempt the first
time we didn’t get any bids.
Vice Chairman Dunham stated that his concern is the difference in prices it is almost 25%
difference, for years it is all about the low bid but to only get two bids. You think that is a
great bid.
General Manager Chris Johnson stated yes, and we cannot wait he is concerned. We got this
last month the day the packet went out so we could not get it in the board packet. He had
Collin ask them to extend the days. The difference does not surprise him, look at the past.
There is no rhyme or reason on bids these days.
Trustee Eisele stated he has nothing.
Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated he has nothing.

Public comment: none

Board of Trustees further discussion/comment: none

Vice Chairman Dunham motioned to accept a bid for the Sanitary Sewer Lift Station Bypass #3
project from Knox Excavation, Inc. in the amount of $57,725.00. Trustee Eisele seconded.
Motion carried 4-0. Trustee Garcia was absent from the meeting.

Minutes of the November 16, 2022, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
- 10 -



Discussion and possible action regarding General Manager Chris Johnson’s annual
performance evaluation.

Chairman Clark-Ross stated can you believe we have had Chris for a year.

Trustee Eisele stated that he has worked with Chris a lot this last year and Chris is doing a
fantastic job for us. He has been able to make a lot of changes, all employees love working
with Chris and that is a big thing. Chris works very good with the board, he has an open-
door policy, which is really good. There are other managers who do not have an open-door
policy.

Vice Chairman Dunham stated that he agrees with Bill when he hears Chris talk to a room
full of people or to just him, he shows the same enthusiasm and energy level above what is
expected of him. Thank you, Chris.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated that he hasn’t been here long enough to fully assess
Chris but from what he has seen he has no complaints or concerns. He has not had a bad
experience. Keep it up.

Chairman Clark-Ross stated that she has Robert’s comments, he submitted via email. Robert
stated: Evaluation: satisfactory. Comments: I look forward to Chris’s evolution as a general
manager of IHGID and appreciate that staff appreciates respects and generally likes our new
general manager. I am optimistic current and future boards will be able to work
collaboratively on matters important to the district and as Chris says “assign value and
prioritize” accordingly. I regret that this vacation scheduled more than two years ago
prohibited my attendance to deliver and deliberate this evaluation in person.

Public comment: Resident Kendra Wilson stated that she really appreciates Chris, open-door
policy is an understatement he spent over an hour with her going on a tour of district. He is always
very engaged, and she appreciates the work he is doing.

Resident Robert Stulac stated he has interacted with Chris on a number of occasions over the last
few months, he is very helpful, very transparent. He also took him on a tour. He gives him a high
rating on his evaluation, he exceeds expectations. Robert stated that he looks forward to working
with him.

Resident Pennt Eisele stated that he is the best we have had, she likes open door policy.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated that he appreciates all the comments here. Chris
stated that this is a passion. He lives here, this is his home. He is looking out for his
neighborhood. As far as the open-door policy he would not have it any other way. Chris
stated he does not have all the answers and never will, he has people who come in and see
him, he has a board that talks to him and public that provides input. It is that kind of
atmosphere that helps us to see things because sometimes when you are so focused on one
job and looking down the road of the norms it is the person from the side that brings ideas
and solutions, he enjoys that.

Chris thanked Kendra and Robert for coming out to do a tour of the district, he extends that
invitation to the world because he finds that our neighbors do not understand how much is
going on here. He likes it that our neighbors can come out here and meet our staff and the
professionalism we have with our staff. Today our staff came together one from water and
one from sewer to crack seal and train the parks guys how to crack seal that is the team we
have. Thank you, we will keep doing what we are doing. Chris stated that with his
evaluation he would like to request a merit increase of 5% for the board to approve.

Minutes of the November 16, 2022, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-11 -

g



Chairman Clark-Ross stated so you not only want your job, but you want more money too.
Brooke what do you think, I would like to hear from you.

Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated well you all
know what I think. Brooke stated she thinks staff as a whole she can 100% speak for staff
because they would all come to her. Staff was all a little concerned not knowing what to
expect from Chris and he has come in here being a breath of fresh air, not that our previous
general manager didn’t value our opinions, but he didn’t necessarily do anything with them.
Chris is doing a great job; everyone is very very happy. Anything that I have brought to
Chris we have taken care of quickly, the morale around here staff wise has skyrocketed in a
very short time. It is simple things, field staff didn’t want green ugly shirts, it was a battle
before with simple, little things. That is all gone with Chris. People enjoy coming here again
and want to continue doing the work that they do. Chris’s leadership has created that bond
that seemed to fade away over time. I think he is doing great.

Chairman Clark-Ross stated she is glad she asked Brooke, that is exactly how she feels she
could not have said it any better. Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources
Brooke Thompson stated yes, the rapport that the rapport that Chris has built with all the
staff very quickly is appreciated. He cares what everyone is doing, wants to Jearn and takes
an interest in that. That helps builds the rapport, respect, and trust.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated it was almost exactly one year ago today that he was
sitting in a chair in front of you interviewing and you voted no. Chris stated he came around
the table afterwards, Kathryn do you remember what I said to you. Chairman Clark-Ross
stated yes something about proving to her. Kathryn stated and you did, but she did have
reservations. She thought that you would not be able to disconnect from the airport and she
was worried because of the prior general manager.

Trustee Eisele motioned to approve a 5% merit increase to General Manager Chris Johnson's
annual salary based on his successful performance evaluation. Vice Chairman Dunham
seconded. Motion carried 4-0. Trustee Garcia was absent from the meeting.

Board of Trustees further discussion/comment: none

9. Reports to the Board:

a. General Manager Report

General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed his report with the Board.

Chris stated thank you the big thing was last month was busy. We had a lot
going on out here and it was a lot of fun. We have received the official
approval for the dog park grant, he will work with Tim to get the design
going. He is also looking at some improvements here. Parks and streets staff
have been winterizing, they have one more mowing to do. Streets they are
crack sealing today and did a great job. Chris stated he is building
relationships throughout the community; these relationships are invaluable to
us. Chris stated that they had the General Manager’s meeting up here, every
two months all General Manager’s from the GID’s, Town managers and he
invited the County Manager, Assistant County Manager and the Chiefs meet
have lunch and talk about issues and how to work collaboratively together.
When our vac truck was down, they would have let us borrow theirs if it was

Minutes of the November 16, 2022, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-12-

59



not broken too. Those relationships need to be fostered and maintained. We
will be hosting the Nevada League of Cities lunch in December and the
Chamber breakfast here in January it is building relationships and putting our
name on the map.
1. Administrative
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the administrative report
with the Board.
2. Water
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the water report with the
Board.
3. Wastewater
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the wastewater report with
the Board.
b. District Accountant Report
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the accountant report with the
Board.
c. Engineer Report
District Engineer Tim Russell stated other than the previous agenda items, he
has nothing else to add.
d. Attorney Report
District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated that he has nothing to report.

Public comment: Resident Kendra Wilson stated bringing back the bike path being on the sidewalk
on Vista Grande what can we do. General Manager Chris Johnson stated there is almost nothing we
can do about that. Douglas County approved that before the bike path was there, we have no teeth in
it. Anything the developer is going to do is going to be out of the kindness of their heart, Chris
stated he will contact Community Development again. Resident Kendra Wilson stated she
understands it is Douglas County, but it is something that we should be concerned about, the safety
of our residents in our neighborhood. We should be concerned.

Resident Robert Stulac asked where this is. General Manager Chris Johnson stated this is at Mica
Drive and Vista Grande.

Vice Chairman Dunham stated Brooke you are doing great, so glad you are here.

10.  Discussion and possible action to approve Draft Minutes from the October 19, 2022,
Board Meeting.

Trustee Eisele motioned to approve Draft Minutes from the October 19, 2022, Board
Meeting. Vice Chairman Dunham seconded. Motion carried 4-0. Trustee Garcia was absent from
the meeting.

11. Chairman and Trustees Reports, Correspondence
Under this item the Board Members will briefly identify relevant communications
received by them before the meeting, or meetings attended, or potential business of the
district. No action will be taken on any of these items, but a member may request
such item or topic be placed on a future agenda.

Minutes of the November 16, 2022, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-13 -

9%



Chairman Clark-Ross stated that the Trunk or Treat was such a bid success, great job. She
gets a lot of feedback, and everyone loved it. Vice Chairman Dunham stated that it is nice to
see people siiting in the audience tonight.

12.  Adjournment

Trustee Eisele motioned to adjourn the meeting. Chairman Clark-Ross seconded.
Motion carried 4-0. Trustee Garcia was absent from the meeting.

Meeting adjourned at 7:49P.M.

FINAL APPROVED MINUTES AS PRESENTED

Trustee
Bill Eisele

Minutes of the November 16, 2022, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting

o



